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Financial and Operational Highlights B f B ¥ K=

(Amounts expressed in HK$’ million, unless specified) Notes 2017 2013
(NEEEETREN  BEFFZHIN) K —E—tF = = — z— —E-=
(Restated)
(415 5T)
Turnover EE X 7,858 9,343 9,322 9,860 11,251
Profit for the year attributableto ~ AAREERFEFEH
ordinary equity holders of BEAREERR
the Company 479 1,051 773 668 734
Total equity BRED 5,897 6,561 6,320 6,187 6,170
Total assets BwEE 9,975 9,325 9,999 9,727 12,313
Total liabilities to total equity ratio #EEHEHARERZLE
(times) ( =) 0.7 0.4 0.6 0.6 1.0
Total interest-bearing debts to total M S G AR L =
equity ratio (times) (1=%) 0.4 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.6
Current ratio (times) e R (Fg) 2.0 2.9 23 24 1.7
Trade and bills receivables (excluded FEUWREBRF K 25 (R B
bills receivable — intra-group BUEE—SERED
trade) to turnover (days) E5)LLEERE(A) 37 27 36 33 30
Inventories to turnover (days) GELEEE(A) 95 80 73 70 67
Net assets per share (HK cents) SREEFEBELN) 427 475 457 448 453
Return on total assets (%) BEEDRE%) 4.8 11.3 7.7 6.9 6.0
Return on turnover (%) EEREERE%) 6.1 11.2 8.3 6.8 6.5
Interest cover (times) MEREBL = (FH) 1 20 91 37 22 15
EBITDA BB WEREENAE 2 802 1,637 1,163 1,079 1,165
EBITDA on turnover (%) B B -EREENFE
EEEEE (%) 10.2 17.5 125 10.9 10.4
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) E 7GR & FI (B #1)) 3 34.6 76.0 56.0 48.9 53.9
Dividends per share (HK cents) SRS CBEA) 62.0 62.0 56.0 48.0 40.0
Dividend yield (%) Pt B0 R 2% (%) 4 11.9 8.2 7.9 5.8 49
Number of issued shares (million) BRTRHEE (FE) 1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382 1,364
Number of employees: BEAH
Hong Kong and Macau EHB KRB 601 622 648 676 680
Taiwan =) | 10 9 10 352 571
Mainland China R K BE 13,368 14,722 15,740 16,499 19,196
Total mey 13,979 15,353 16,398 17,527 20,447

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Financial and Operational Highlights B i B ¥ KR E

Notes:
1. Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and

tax by the interest expenses.

2. EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
expenses.
3. Number of shares was on weighted average basis.

4. Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting

period.

5. The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for
each financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the

Group as at the end of the respective reporting period.
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Chairman’s Statement FERGE

The Group experienced a challenging year. The global economy was
volatile and uncertain particularly in the second half year. The demand
from the U.S., the Group’s major market, was weak and unstable. The
operating environment was even more tough when raw material and
energy costs moved up substantially also in the second half year. The
Group was unable to pass on all the increased costs to the buyers
under such adverse economic conditions. The textile revenue and
profitability thus dropped.

As the U.S. has withdrawn from the Trans-Pacific Partnership, the
Group has stopped the plan to set up another textile plant in Vietnam.
Instead, the Group will further increase the production capacity in
China. In the next financial year, much more advanced machinery and
equipment will be installed in Dongguan factory to focus on new
functional fabrics and value-added orders. The Group has collaborated
with several reputed China retail brands and will continue to explore
the China market to diversify the customer base.

In the period, the retail environment in the Mainland China remained
difficult. The Group continued to consolidate the retail network for
efficiency enhancement. The product quality has been refined to
improve the profit margins. The Group has also been developing

e-commerce for wider revenue coverage.

The Group will closely monitor the ever-changing business conditions.
Recently, the operating environment has shown some signs of
progression. Despite the uncertainties ahead, the Group will maintain
a positive business approach and is quite optimistic to achieve a better
result in the coming year.

On behalf of the board, | would like to convey my gratitude to our
shareholders and business partners for their continuing support. |
would also like to express my deepest thanks to our colleagues for

their devoted contribution.

Poon Bun Chak

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 June 2017

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management's Discussion and Analysis &2 8 2 s it ) 2 #7

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2017, the Group's total revenue
decreased by 15.9% to HK$7,858 million (2016 : HK$9,343 million).
Profit for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company amounted to HK$479 million (2016 : HK$1,051 million), a
drop of 54.4%. The Group's gross profit margin was 31.7% (2016 :
34.0%), a decrease of 2.3 percentage points from last year. In the
period, the decrease in profit after tax was primarily due to the

following reasons :

1. the decrease in sales by 19.7% and gross profit margin by 4.8
percentage points of the Group's textile business ;

2. the one-off gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$269 million
recorded in the year ended 31 March 2016; and

3. the decrease in net gain on disposal of trademarks of HK$244
million.

Net profit contributed by an associate also decreased by HK$42
million. The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK32.0 cents
(2016 : final dividend of HK16.0 cents and special dividend of HK18.0
cents) per ordinary share. Including interim dividend, total dividend
per ordinary share would be HK62.0 cents, the same as last year.

Textile business

Turnover of the textile business decreased by 19.7% to HK$3,807
million (2016 : HK$4,741 million). The amount represented 48.4%
(2016 : 50.7%) of the Group’s total revenue. Operating environment
was unfavourable owing to the volatile global economy and weak
demand from the U.S. The situation was worse when raw material
prices went up substantially in the second half year. The Group was
unable to pass on all the increased costs to the customers. The gross
profit margin decreased to 16.9% from last year’s 21.7%. The average
selling price fell by 2.5%. The performance and the key financial ratios
of the business were as below :

(Amounts expressed in HK$’million, unless specified)

%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ&iﬁ%?ﬁ)ﬁ

BZE —tE=ZA=Z+-BLAFHREE K
%IZ%@H&l)\Tﬂ%15.9%i;%ﬁ57,858ﬁr%71: =
E-ARF I BEIZBHEER) AQAAEZEESR
FEERLEAFEZNABEINEER (=
—RF I BEI1,051EE L) T#54.4% c NEE
ZERMEEIT%(ZE —XNE :34.0%) i&
FRP23EEMDH - R BRBEZRERHD £
BARTHER :

1. $’§l%%ﬁ%ﬁ%i‘ﬁ%iﬁiﬁ‘ﬁ]%&%ﬂ%

BWAPA8EBE M E

2. RITE-—RE=ZRA=+-—HLEEEHE—
MEBAR B8 - AMKRFEEM20EE
TT

3. HEBRRWRFHERDBE24BER

BAEBEARGENFETTRBLEREET &
EEEBERRATRESTERBIE2.0M(=
E-REF:REREBE16.0MLRFHKREBL
18.01l) - EFHHKRE SETERRELELRASE
#62.01L  HEFMEE -

WmEER

M ER cEEBETHRI97%EBE38078E
i(—i—%\i'5%’#154741§%7‘1:)°¢t§w%$
EEBAEETE 2484% (ZF — KXF 507%) °
KEREBW A E*EEEEEEA%TTi«‘@@J@&%.
EREFAH-THERHMEEZARBLASE
MESERE - KAEBUREERELLAZTEEEK
FEF - ENEHEFEZ21.7%H D E16.9% °
PTHEREBHRTH25%  WEBCXRBRETE
ML RBIIAT :

(LEMEETREN  BREFFHIN) —ME
Net sales HEFH 3,807 4,741 4,718 5,026 5,460
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 16.9 21.7 21.7 20.4 16.0
Operating profit (note 1) EERB M) 350 666 622 671 546
EBITDA (note 1) B EREHEA S

(HiaE1) 518 842 802 871 765
Return on total assets (%) (note 2) #EE Wz E(%) (H#t2) 4.9 9.6 8.5 8.4 6.3
Return on sales (%) (note 2) HEWRZ(%) (it2) 10.2 14.2 15.3 143 12.4
Return on equity (%) (note 2) R WRE%) (Fit2) 8.4 12.5 12.8 12.8 11.2
Capital expenditure EARMLTH 143 1M1 56 121 45
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Management's Discussion and Analysis &2 8 2 s it )2 2 7

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

Textile business (continued)

Notes :

(1) Exclude interest income and rental income.

) Exclude rental income.

Retail and distribution business

Sales of the business amounted to HK$4,044 million (2016 : HK$4,592
million), a decrease of 11.9%. The sum was 51.5% (2016 : 49.1%) of
the Group'’s total turnover. In the period, the retail environment in the
Mainland China remained sluggish. The Group continued to close non-
performing stores in order to improve the retail network efficiency.
Strict inventory control was also exercised. Product mix has been
refined to enhance profit margins. The performance and the key
financial ratios of the business were as below :

(@) the business performance and the key financial ratios were as

follows:

EBOERRKER @

T ()
Mt -
() TEEHERARHEZUA -

@  TEEEZRA -

SERDHER
HEBEEFHELBBILMEET(ZE—A
FBMASNEERT)  HA11.9% 8B AR
EEBEEEI515% (ZFE—RNF49.1%) °
HA FEAESERENARTE - AEBHE
ERRBETEZEHEURASERAENE FE
TEMEH - ERERTFBEUEAFB %
BeRERETEVKLEERIINT :

e —

(@) EBREARTEMBLERIIMNT :

(Amounts expressed in HK$’million, unless specified) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(UEBBEETREN BERZHI) ZE2—+tF ZEB-RF —T-1F —E-NF —F-Z=§
Net sales EEERLE 4,044 4,592 4,591 4,816 5,768
Gross profit margin (%) ERE%) 45,5 46.6 46.8 46.7 44.9
Sales growth of comparable shops WL ES SRR L &

(%) (note 1) (%) (BE1) (7.8) 7.3 6.0 (7.6) (12.0)
Operating profit/(loss) (note 2) EEFB (BB (HF2) (96) (93) 13 (245) (202)
EBITDA (note 2) BB HERBHEANRE

(Hit2) (11) 8 113 (107) (52)
Return on total assets (%) (note 3) & E U = (%) (Kf53) (4.8) (4.3) (0.7) (13.9) (7.6)
Return on sales (%) (note 3) HEWER(%) (HaE3) (2.3) 2.4) (0.3) (5.2) 3.0
Return on equity (%) (note 3) BwWEE%) (KEE3) (15.9) (9.5) (2.1) (42.5) (20.4)
Capital expenditure BEAMTH 73 96 72 43 119
Notes : BaT -
(1) Comparable shops include shops with full year operation during 1 AR HIERZERBEF —FIIELFEE
the year and the preceding year. HIJE 4 o

2) Exclude interest income and rental income.

3) Exclude rental income.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management's Discussion and Analysis &2 8 2 s it ) 2 #7

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT EKEERAREREGE)
(continued)
Retail and distribution business (continued) SERDHEK(B)
(b) the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows: (b) RFERBEEINWOT :
(HK$'million) 2017 2016 2014
(BHHETT) -t —T-RF -E —E-NF
Baleno B B 3,144 3,260 2,821 2,754 3,038
S&K S&K 293 415 476 552 742
I.P. Zone I.P. Zone 215 304 320 417 555
ebase ebase 5 98 336 497 609
Others Hit 387 515 638 596 824
Total &% 4,044 4,592 4,591 4,816 5,768
()  the development in different markets was as follows: (0 HHmBSERBERUOT :
Mainland China O K R
2017 2016 2014
—E—tHF ZE-RF —E-NF
Net sales (HK$’ million) EEFH(EMEET) 3,476 4,013 4,014 4,098 4,920
Decrease in net sales (%) SHEREZRD (%) (13) — () (17) (15)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** ZEREER(FAHR)* 1,723,190 1,779,340 1,700,135 1,959,394 2,147,536
Number of sales associates** EEEYA 5,493 6,425 6,971 7,710 9,168
Number of outlets*? PImEE*: 2,841 2,770 2,865 2,928 3,424
Hong Kong BB
2017 2016 2014
—E—t§ —E-RF —E-NF
Net sales (HK$’ million) HEFRB(EKEET) 568 579 486 445 435
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%) $EEZE LM/ GRL) (%) (2) 19 9 2 (5)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** ZEREERE(FHFR)* 65,515 64,543 62,440 66,184 63,254
Number of sales associates ** EEEHAP 385 395 393 392 425
Number of outlets ** FImE A * 60 64 59 66 68

BREEMERAT —T—LEH @



Management’s Discussion and Analysis &2 8 i il & 2 17

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

(continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued)

() the development in different markets was as follows:
(continued)

Taiwan

EBOERRKER @

ZERTHEY (E)
(0 BUEWESBERBEROT : (&)

2015 2014 2013

—E-fF —E-NE ZFE-=&

— — 91 273 413
— (100) (67) (34) (17)
- — — 90,689 142,079
- — — 290 488
- — — 91 166

Net sales (HK$’ million) HETFH(BKEET)
Decrease in net sales (%) HEFHEZRD (%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** SERE@BE(FLR)*
Number of sales associates** EXBHA
Number of outlets ** PFImg A+

* As at the end of the reporting period

# For self-managed stores

4 Including self-managed and franchise stores

Garment manufacturing business

Revenue of this associate decreased by 36.3% to HK$738 million (2016
: HK$1,159 million). Net loss contribution to the Group amounted to
HK$8 million (2016 : profit HK$34 million). The operating environment
was tough in the year mainly due to the marked slowdown of global
consumer sentiment. In the year, 51.0% (2016 : 69.2%) of the fabric
consumed was supplied by the textile division and sales to retail
division represented 30.3% (2016 : 28.7%) of its revenue.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank borrowings and the gearing ratio as at
the year end were 2.0, HK$2,517 million and -0.3 (2016: 2.9, HK$843
million and -0.3) respectively. The increase in bank borrowing was
mainly for the repayment of the trade payables and the financing of
short term investments of the Group. The gearing ratio refers to the
ratio of the total interest-bearing debts, net of cash and cash
equivalents, to the total equity. The net cash inflow from operating
activities for the year was HK$276 million (2016: HK$879 million).

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis &2 8 i il & 2 17

FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (continued)

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables to
turnover and the inventories to turnover were 20 times, 37 days and
95 days (2016: 91 times, 27 days and 80 days) respectively. The
decrease in the interest cover was mainly due to the decrease in the
gain on disposal of trademarks of HK$244 million during the year and
the gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$269 million in last year. The
Group mainly satisfied its funding requirements with cash inflow from
its operating activities and bank borrowings. At the year end, the cash
and cash equivalents, the equity attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the unutilized banking facilities were
HK$4,023 million, HK$5,450 million and HK$6,099 million (2016:
HK$3,005 million, HK$6,132 million and HK$7,772 million),
respectively. The increase in cash and cash equivalents compared with
last year was mainly for enhancing the return on short term bank
deposit.

Capital expenditure

The capital expenditure incurred by the Group during the year was
HK$216 million (2016: HK$207 million). The capital expenditure
incurred by the textile business for the year was HK$143 million (2016:
HK$111 million) mainly for the addition of plant and machinery. For
the retail and distribution business, our capital expenditure incurred
for the year mainly for the leasehold improvements of shops
amounted to HK$73 million (2016: HK$96 million).

Pledge of assets
No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2016.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2016 have been set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

B 3 RO (48)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis &2 8 i il & 2 17

FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest-
bearing bank borrowings of the Group were HKD, RMB, USD and YEN
floating rate borrowings with maturity due within two years (2016:
three years). At the year end, the cash and cash equivalents and the
held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investments amounted to
HK$4,023 million and HK$540 million (2016 : HK$3,005 million and
HK$643 million), respectively, were mainly denominated in HKD, RMB
and USD. The cash and cash equivalents were placed as fixed deposits
with well-established financial institutions at fixed interest rate with
maturity due within one year (2016 : one year). And, the held-to-
maturity and available-for-sale investments were mainly investments
with maturity due within three years (2016 : six years). As the US
economic condition is becoming more healthy and stable, we expect
the interest rate will rise steadily in the year to come. The Group will
continue to monitor the interest rate risk and arrange appropriate
financial instruments to reduce its risk whenever appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB ,
YEN and NTD and the Group had arranged foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce its currency exchange risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had about 13,979 (2016 : 15,400)
employees in the Greater China. The remuneration of the employees
was largely based on industry practice and the performance of
individual employee.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. The Group has
established environmental management system and energy
management system in the textile manufacturing operations in
accordance with international standards ISO 14001:2004 and ISO
50001:2011 respectively. The environmental management system will
be reviewed from time to time in order to reduce risks related to
environmental issues. While the energy management system will
enable the Group to achieve continually improvement of energy
performance, and therefore reduce energy cost and greenhouse gas
emissions in long term.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group was in compliance
with the applicable environmental protection laws and regulations in
connection with waste water, greenhouse gas emission, as well as

solid waste generated from its textile manufacturing operations.

Q TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE (continued)
Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance will be reported in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company to be published on the websites
of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has ensured and continues to ensure full compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations that have significant impact on its
operations, including but not limited to laws and regulations in
relation to environmental protection, product safety and liabilities,
customer rights protection, employment and occupational safety.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in the
relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek external

advice if considered necessary.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, we also encourage our employees, customers
and business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities with a view
to developing a better future for our community.

During the year, some of the activities/organisations the Group
participated in/donated or sponsored to were:

(1) World Wide Fund For Nature Hong Kong;

(2) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Love Teeth Day”;

(3) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “The Community Chest
Green Day”;

(4) Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service — Hong Kong
“Outing with mental disabilities and their families in Mid-
Autumn Festival”;

(5) Sowers Action;

(6) Ocean Park Conservation Foundation Hong Kong;

(7)  St.James’ Settlement; and

(8) The Hong Kong Council of Social Service “Caring Company”.

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporations and the
government. Therefore, we will continue to invest resources in all
major social, educational and environmental protection activities to

strive for a better future for our community.
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OUTLOOK

With the withdrawal of the U.S.’s participation in the Trans-Pacific
Partnership, the economic benefits enjoyed by Vietnam could be
diminished. The Group has stopped the plan to establish another
textile plant in Vietnam. The Group will increase production capacity
in China more substantially. More automated machinery and
equipment will be installed in Dongguan factory to focus on new
functional fabrics and value-added orders in the coming year. As the
U.S. economy is volatile, the Group has collaborated successfully with
many reputed China retail brands to diversify the customer base. Now
the China market is already the second largest market for our textile

business.

For the retail business, the Group will continue to consolidate the
stores to save rental costs and upgrade operating efficiencies. More
trendy and quality products have been introduced to raise profit
margins. The Group will further invest in e-commerce to broaden the

revenue source.

The Group will closely monitor the ever-changing economic conditions
to apply responding business strategies. Despite the uncertainties
ahead, the Group will continue to exercise a positive business
approach. Recently, business environment has shown signs of
improvement. With solid financial position, the Group is quite

optimistic to achieve improved results in the coming year.
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Report of the Directors EEE &

The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of the
production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn; the retailing
and distribution of casual apparel and accessories; the provision of
franchise services; the provision of repair and maintenance services for
motor vehicles and properties investment. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of
Hong Kong, including a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group; material events that have occurred
since the end of the financial year; an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business; an analysis of the Group's
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators; a discussion on compliance with relevant laws and
regulations; and a description of the Group’s environmental policies
and performance and corporate social responsibility are contained in
the preceding Chairman’s Statement and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis set out on page 6 and pages 7 to 14, respectively, of this
Annual Report. Those discussions form part of this Report of the
Directors.

In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management are

disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements
on pages 46 to 152.

An interim dividend of HK30.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 4
January 2017. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK32.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders on the Register of Members on 23 August 2017.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION MEEREE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- TRAXNEENRBAIBANREEAGIEER
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as EE -SEHFEREZZHME NHRBELEEX
extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/ BEBRRBZEEZEEHBIT, HE HBEI R
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not BREEZHBEBRR IS

form part of the audited financial statements.

Results E4

Year ended 31 March
BE=BA=1+—HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

=%-+f =F-AF —F-EF =—F-NEF -F-=
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
EEFT BMTFT BMTT BETT  BETR

REVENUE A 7,858,476 9,343,282 9,322,316 9,859,613 11,250,843
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B2 A1 3% A 520,057 1,344,536 858,248 707,007 740,014
Income tax expense 8 (13,521) (87,416) (85,717)  (117,555) (59,251)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 506,536 1,257,120 772,531 589,452 680,763
Attributable to: T
Ordinary equity holders of APABEBEES
the Company EE 478,525 1,050,655 773,293 668,352 734,229
Non-controlling interests FiERER 28,011 206,465 (762) (78,900) (53,466)

506,536 1,257,120 772,531 589,452 680,763

Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests BE AREFZRER

As at 31 March
=H=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

“2-tf B ZB-If ZT-HNE —T-—=F
HKS$’000  HK$:000  HK$°000  HK$000  HK$'000
BMFT BT BETT BETT E¥Fx

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 9,975,465 9,324,808 9,999,169 9,727,009 12,313,156
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE (4,078,062) (2,764,179) (3,679,337) (3,539,865) (6,142,701)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS JF 2= B3 fE 2= (447,770)  (428,618)  (233,616)  (230,673)  (308,121)

5,449,633 6,132,011 6,086,216 5,956,471 5,862,334

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Report of the Directors EEE &

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and construction in progress of the Group
during the year are set out in notes 12, 13 and 15 to the financial
statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 42 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
and/or distribution in specie amounted to HK$2,971,169,000 of which
HK$442,143,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$703,365,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$766,000 (2016: HK$1,560,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:
Poon Bun Chak (Executive Chairman)
Ting Kit Chung (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive directors:
Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing

Law Brian Chung Nin

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing directors
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, and still considers them to be independent as at the date of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each of
the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by either
party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or
compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, no director
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or
any of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 68, is the executive chairman of the Group
overseeing the planning and development of the Group. He founded
the Group in 1975 and has more than 45 years’ experience in the
textile field. He is the father of Mr. Poon Ho Tak, the general manager
of the Group.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 61, is the chief executive officer of the
Group. He is responsible for the general administration and financial
management of the Group. He joined the Group in 1991 and has more
than 10 years’ banking experience. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from The University of Hong Kong.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 71, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council
Members of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a consultant
to Dao Heng Securities Limited (1989-2008) and a member of the
Election Committee for the financial services subsector election for the
1998 Legislative Council. He is also an independent non-executive
director for a public company listed on the Stock Exchange. In
addition, he is a former deputy chairman of The Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (1992-1994) and a former council member
of the Stock Exchange (1988-1994).
independent non-executive director of the Company in July 1995.

He was appointed as an

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 67, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30 years’
experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong Kong. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 1992.

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 59, has worked for several major
he
possesses extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance and

international accounting and financial institutions. Besides,
private equity. Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto in 1980
with a degree in Bachelor of Commerce. He has been a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario, Canada since 1983. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in April 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 54, joined the Group in 1997 and is the
Group’s financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan holds a
Master's degree in commerce from The University of New South
Wales, Australia, and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a certified practising accountant
of the CPA Australia. He has more than 30 years’' experience in

auditing and accounting.

Mr. Fung Wai Lun, Daniel, aged 60, is a director of the Group's retail
operations. Before joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Fung had more than
20 years' experience in the retailing industry.

Mr. Poon Ho Tak, aged 40, the general manager of the Group and the
son of Mr. Poon Bun Chak. After his studies at The University of New
South Wales, Australia, he joined the Group as a management trainee
in 2003. In November 2009 and January 2016, he was promoted as the
deputy general manager and the general manager of the Group
overseeing the overall general management of the textile business,

respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the directors in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of director

Capacity

E=ps & 5

Executive directors:

HITES:

Poon Bun Chak Founder of a family trust
EWOE RixEFEZ B3 A

Ting Kit Chung Beneficial owner

THER EXESR
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Note:

1. Mr. Poon Bun Chak is a founder of a family trust and is deemed to be
interested in 664,758,104 Shares held under the family trust. For details,
please refer to the “Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s interests
in shares and underlying shares” under the Report of the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2017, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Capacity

&1

Trustee

ZFEA

UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited

Poon’s Holdings Limited
BRERERQH EIEAQR
Farrow Star Limited Directly owned
HEER
Edgbaston Investment Partners LLP  Investment manager
REKRE
Edgbaston Asian Equity Trust Directly owned

HEES

Through controlled corporation
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Note:

1. UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited, as a trustee of a family trust founded by Mr.
Poon Bun Chak, holds the entire issued share capital of Poon’s Holdings
Limited through its nominee, UBS Nominee Limited. Poon’s Holdings
Limited holds the entire issued share capital of Farrow Star Limited.
Farrow Star Limited in turn holds 664,758,104 shares of the Company.
Therefore, each of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited,
Poon’s Holdings Limited and Farrow Star Limited is deemed to be
interested in 664,758,104 Shares held by Farrow Star Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest and short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below,
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), and have confirmed that these continuing connected

transactions were entered into:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditor, were engaged to
report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed below by the Group in accordance
with relevant clauses of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

In accordance with Rules 14A.49 of the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in compliance with Rule 14A.71 and 14A.72.

(1)  Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person
On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"”), a company controlled and
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin
Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at Tianjin City, He Ping Qu, Bin
Jiang Road 282-286, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet
for the retail and distribution business of the Group for a term
of two years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the monthly
rents of RMB1,208,000 for the first year and RMB1,268,000 for
the second year.

(2) Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a connected
person
On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s
Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarter of the
Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April 2016 at
the monthly rent of HK$400,000.

(3) Lease of a property as a training center from a connected person
On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room 42078,
42nd Floor, Metroplaza, Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong and a car parking space
from WLEL as a training center of the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the monthly rent of
HK$63,200.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company'’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong
16 June 2017
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ ERMRE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability. The
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules have been
adopted to shape our corporate governance structure. This report
describes how the principles of the CG Code have been applied during
the year ended 31 March 2017 under different aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2017, the Board comprised of five members. The two
executive directors included Mr. Poon Bun Chak and Mr. Ting Kit
Chung. The three independent non-executive directors (“INEDs")
included Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian
Chung Nin.

All the existing independent non-executive directors of the Company
have a term of one year, and they are subject to retirement and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with
Clause 87 of the Company’s bye-laws.

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The executive chairman and the chief executive officer are Mr. Poon
Bun Chak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung respectively; therefore the roles of
the executive chairman and the chief executive officer are segregated.
The primary role of the executive chairman is to provide leadership for
the Board and to ensure that it works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities. The chief executive officer is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Group's business.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independence and Qualification of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has three INEDs representing more than one third of its
Board, which is in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of business and
financial experience. One of the INEDs, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin,
possesses professional accounting qualification in full compliance with
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed their independence for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

Role of the Board
The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and
the day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the

executive management.
The principal roles of the Board are:

(1) to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and

business plan;
(2)  to monitor the performance of each operating segment;

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives;

(4) to authorise material borrowings and expenditures;

(5) to prepare and approve financial statements, annual and
interim reports, and make judgments that are fair and
reasonable in the preparation of the Company’s disclosure
statements;

(6) to perform corporate governance functions in accordance with
the CG Code, including the determination of the Group’s
corporate governance policies, and the review and monitoring
of the corporate governance practices of the Group; and

(7)  to oversee and review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group through review of the
reports form Audit Committee.

Directors’ Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
directors in connection with the discharge of their responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company as well as the obligation and responsibility
of being a director under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Reading materials on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations will be provided to directors where
appropriate. All directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors
received the following training during the financial year:

Directors

=3

Executive directors HITES

Poon Bun Chak EWOE

Ting Kit Chung THAR
Independent non-executive directors BUYBTES
Au Son Yiu B R

Cheng Shu Wing B 151 88

Law Brian Chung Nin &

A: reading materials relating to the Group, general business or director’s duties
and responsibilities, etc.

B: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

Board Process

The Company has in place clear board process. Regular board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
board papers are served to all directors at least five business days in
advance of each board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and
decision making. Directors may include any matters they wish to
discuss in the agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings
are prepared and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and
are open for inspection by directors upon request. All directors have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary, and are
allowed to seek external professional advice if needed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Annual General Meeting and Board Meetings

The Company held an annual general meeting and four regular board
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2017. Attendance of
individual Board members at the meetings is set out below:

Directors

s

Executive directors HITES

Poon Bun Chak EBWIE

Ting Kit Chung THER
Independent non-executive directors BYkHITES
Au Son Yiu ELR

Cheng Shu Wing SR A8t £

Law Brian Chung Nin EHEF

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees to oversee certain
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each board committee has its own
terms of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have
been approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms
of reference of each board committee are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, Mr. Au Son Yiu, and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, a qualified accounting

professional.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)
The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

(a)

monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;
(b) monitoring and assessing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

()  monitoring the performance of the Group'’s internal audit team;

(d) considering the appointment and removal of the external
auditor, the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and
(e)

reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of

the Group.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year ended 31
March 2017 to review the followings:

(@)

the risk management and internal control of the Group;

(b)

the effectiveness of internal audit function;

(c)  the financial reporting process and the financial statements of
the Group; and

(d)

the continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing

Rules.

The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year ended
31 March 2017 is set out below:

Members of the Audit Committee
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Law Brian Chung Nin = E
Au Son Yiu BaE
Cheng Shu Wing B A 5
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs
and one executive director, namely Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu
Wing, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Au Son Yiu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management as well as
the compensations payable to directors. The remuneration of the
directors and senior management is determined with reference to the
performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the Remuneration
Committee will ensure that no director or any of his associate will be

involved in the determination of his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings to make recommendations to the Board on the
directors’ fee as well as the remuneration and performance bonus of

executive directors and senior management.

The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2017 is set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended
31 March 2017 is set out below:

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

Further details of the directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
March 2017 are disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements

contained in this Annual Report.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) consists of three INEDs and one executive director,
namely Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The Nomination Committee
is chaired by Mr. Cheng Shu Wing.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
of candidates with appropriate experience and qualification to the
Board, reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and

assessing independence of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board ensuring that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience; to review and recommend the re-appointment of directors
standing for re-election at the Company’s 2016 annual general

meeting; and to assess independence of the INEDs.

The attendance of Nomination Committee meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2017 is set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function to
maintain effective corporate governance within the Group. The
corporate governance duties of the Board have been set out in the
terms of reference of the Board on corporate governance functions
which are available on the website of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board reviewed and
monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; training and continuous professional development of
directors; and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT IN
THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the
code provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the financial year,
except for the following deviations:

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company.

The chairman of the Board has delegated the duty of attending
the annual general meeting to the chief executive officer of the
Company. The chairman considers the chief executive officer a
suitable person for taking up such duty as the chief executive
officer has been serving for similar duties for many years and he
has good understanding of each operating segment of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company
by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors,
they have all complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the financial year.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Chi

as well as communications among

Hon, is responsible for
facilitating the board process,
directors, with shareholders and management. The Company
Secretary’s biography has been set out in the “Biographical details of
Directors and Senior Management” section of the Report of the
Directors. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company
Secretary undertook over 15 hours of professional training to upgrade

his skills and knowledge.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2017, fees paid/payable for audit and
non-audit services by the Company to its principal external auditor

were as follows:

Services

BR %

S RHFT RS

Audit services rendered
Review of continuing connected transactions

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditor of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 39 to 45.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to mitigating
risks inherent in our business faced by the Group to an acceptable
level, but not eliminating all risks. Hence, such systems can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement in financial information or financial loss.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board reviews the effectiveness
and efficiency of risk management and internal control systems
annually. To achieve this, the Audit Committee, acting on behalf of
the Board, oversees the following process:

(1) regular reviews of the principal business risks and the control
measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such risks;

(2) risk-based audits on the major operating activities by the
internal audit team; and

(3) discussion with the external auditor matters on auditing,
internal control and financial report.

For the risk assessment and control activities, “top-down” approach is
complemented by the “bottom-up” aspects and the involvement of
operating units in identifying operation risks. Management conducts
an internal control self-assessment annually. Department heads have
to complete relevant control self-assessment questionnaires and
confirm to the management that appropriate internal control policies
and procedures have been established and properly complied with.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework Diagram:

Corporate Governance Report

Top-down
Oversight, identification,
assessment and mitigation
of risk at corporate level
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Responsible for the Group'’s
risk management and
internal controls system
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Management
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Bottom-up
Identification, assessment
and mitigation of risk at

operation level
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monitors risk management
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systems
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The Board
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strategies, policies and
business plan
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Audit Committee
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monitoring risk exposure,
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of the underlying risk
management and internal
control systems
B EE S B E MK
F o *EEEJ—LF“"“IE&W?‘B
EZERBORAEE
DRSS

Operational Level (business owner)
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Internal controls embedded within the
operational processes
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Reviews the effectiveness
and efficiency of the risk
management and internal
control systems

R EBEERAIEE

Internal Audit
ARt

Supports the Audit
Committee in reviewing
the effectiveness and
efficiency of the Group's
risk management and
internal control systems
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External Auditor
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Report on any control weakness to the Audit Committee
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During the year, the internal audit team, which reports directly to the
Audit Committee, has reviewed the risk management and internal
controls of each major operating segment of the Group and has
reported its findings to the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit
Committee are satisfied with the effectiveness and efficiency of the

risk management and internal control systems of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Company has established policy for ensuring that inside information is
disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations. Senior management of the corporate
affairs and financial control functions of the Group are delegated with
responsibilities to control and monitor the proper procedures to be observed
on the disclosure of inside information. Access to inside information is at all
times confined to relevant senior management and on “as needed” basis,
until proper disclosure or dissemination of inside information in accordance

with applicable laws and regulations. Relevant personnels and other
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inside information until it is publicly disclosed.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees
and other stakeholders reporting on any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Group in confidence and without fear of
reprisal or victimisation. The policy is available on the website of the
Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance. In designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

According to clause 58 of Company’s bye-laws, shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Companies Act”).

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Shareholder(s) is/are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company when (i) the shareholder(s) representing not
less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of the
Company on the date of the requisition; or (ii) the requisition is made
by not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
shareholders concerned, together with a statement with respect to
the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and the
shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as well as our
many stakeholders regarding the latest developments whilst ensuring
that relevant information is equally and simultaneously provided and
accessible to all interested parties. The Company has adopted a
Shareholder Communication Policy which provides the below
communication channels to shareholders so as to enable them to
engage actively with the Company and exercise their right as
shareholders in an informed manner.

(1) Meeting shareholders in annual general meetings (“"AGM") to
explain results of the Company and answer questions of
shareholders;

(2) Disseminating corporate information to shareholders according
to the rules and regulations;

(3) Meeting fund managers to promote the business of the
Company; and

(4)  Publishing the background, the latest development and the

results of the Group on the Company’s website.

The Company ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to
the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee also attend the
AGM to answer questions from shareholders.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the
Company follows the best corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
prior to the AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details
of each proposed resolution and other relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules. The chairman of the AGM exercises
his power under the Company’s bye-laws to put each proposed
resolution to the vote by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting
a poll are explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.
Voting results are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange on the day of the AGM.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there was no significant change
in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these documents are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Making Enquiries to the Board
The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments
and suggestions to the Board or to the Company are welcome to
contact the Company Secretary.

Designated contact information
Texwinca Holdings Limited

Address 16th Floor, Metroplaza, Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2610 7116 / (852) 2610 7257

Fax : (852) 2233 1116/ (852) 2233 1257

Email IR@texwinca.com

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report Y& 3 #% B A 3R &

EY:

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 46 to 152, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFRUNTEERRENSHE

Provision for inventories

FEERE

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had inventories net of
provision of HK$2,050,435,000, which comprised of textile
and apparel products. The consumption of inventories is
subject to changing consumer demands and market
trends which increased the level of judgement involved in
estimating inventory provisions. Judgement was required
to assess the appropriate level of provision for items
which may be ultimately obsoleted or sold below cost as a
result of a reduction in customers’ demand. Such
judgements included management’s expectations for
future sales net of estimated selling expenses.
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We obtained an understanding of the inventory
provision policy adopted by management. We also
evaluated whether the inventory provision was made in
accordance with the policy. We have examined
management’s estimation regarding the obsolescence
percentage applied based on past experience,
subsequent sales and usage status, and market-specific
considerations.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Key audit matter

REET SR

Relevant disclosures are included in note 21 to the

financial statements.

HEREI BN BRI EE21 -

Recoverability of trade receivables

JE Y BR 5% 1Y AT U B 14

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of trade
receivables before provision amounted to
HK$676,244,000. Management is required to assess
whether a provision for impairment is needed in respect
of those trade receivables that might not be fully
collectable. The determination as to whether a trade
receivable is collectable involves management judgement.
Specific factors management considers include the age of
the balance, recent historical payments, existence of
disputes, and any other available information concerning
the creditworthiness of the counterparties. As at 31 March
2017 the impairment provision recorded for trade
receivables was HK$10,856,000.
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Relevant disclosures are included in note 22 to the
financial statements.

HEREIEN I BRI aE22-

HREEFSEEH @
How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EMEARUMEERARETETE
We tested the reliability of the underlying data used by
management to calculate the inventory obsolescence
provisions by reviewing the inventory ageing analysis
and checking, on a sample basis, the subsequent sales
and usage.
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We also tested the accuracy of the resultant calculation
by assessing the calculation criteria and recalculating
the provision for the inventories based on those criteria.
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For those items which were identified as slow-moving,
excess or obsolete, we assessed management'’s
calculation of net realisable value by checking to the
latest or subsequent selling prices.
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Our audit procedures included assessing management's
processes and controls relating to the monitoring of
trade receivables and identifying collection risks. We
tested the ageing analysis of trade receivables and
examined post year end cash receipts for a sample of
year-end trade receivable balances. We critically
assessed the Group’s provision levels by considering the
historical cash collection trends and evaluating
underlying documentation supporting the recoverability
of outstanding balances. Furthermore, we enquired of
management about any disputes with the Group’s trade
debtors.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

AEETEIE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRETSE

Tax provisions and contingencies

HIEBEEREATIE

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD")
initiated a review on the tax affairs of certain subsidiaries
of the Group for the years of assessment of 2005/2006,
2006/2007, 2007/2008, 2008/2009, 2009/2010 and
2010/2011. Estimating the outcome of the final tax
position and the assessment as to whether a provision
and the amount of such provision should be recognised
are complex and judgmental, and the amounts involved
would be material to the financial statements.

EMETROAEERRENSE

Our audit procedures included making enquires of the
Directors to obtain their view on the status of the
review conducted by the IRD and understanding the
process followed by the management to assess the
impact of such review. Our internal tax specialists
analysed the Group's correspondence with the IRD and
considered management’s assessment of the probability
and outcome of objecting the tax claimed with
reference to other similar cases. We also assessed
whether the Group's disclosures detailing the review
conducted by the IRD adequately disclose the potential

liabilities of the Group.
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Relevant disclosures are included in note 34(b) to the
financial statements.
1B B8 3% 5B B A B 3% 3R 3R BT 5 34(b) ©
OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL HEREFHRAEMER

REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥& 3 #% B &l 3R £

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report Y& 3 #% B A 3R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower,

1 Tim Mei Avenue,

Central, Hong Kong

16 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss ‘m&iEi R

Year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =—ZE—+tF=H=+—HIFE

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Gain on disposal of trademarks

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses, net

Finance costs

Share of profit or loss of an associate,
net of tax

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY (HK cents)

Basic

Diluted
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2017 2016
=E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
7,858,476 9,343,282
(5.367,362) (6,170,639)
2,491,114 3,172,643
212,603 173,518
152,400 396,400
— 268,918
(1,700,552) (1,898,701)
(597,126) (774,684)
(3,617) (13,073)
(26,993) (14,908)
(7,772) 34,423
520,057 1,344,536
(13,521) (87,416)
506,536 1,257,120
478,525 1,050,655
28,011 206,465
506,536 1,257,120
34.6 76.0
34.6 76.0




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #& 2 HEW A &K

Year ended 31 March 2017 B2 —&E—+tF=HA=1+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T EBEF
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEERF 506,536 1,257,120
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Htp2EBEA
Other comprehensive losses to be REZHBAEHR > EEER
reclassified to profit or loss in WEMmEEERE :

subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translationof # E @ /I RE £ B E & >~

foreign operations EHEZ (289,566) (211,149)
Release of exchange fluctuation HE-HBLAABEENR 2
reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary ~ HNE & B i 5 33 — (3,790)

Net other comprehensive lossestobe REZHBAUEHIEETER

reclassified to profit or loss in WHMtEEERFRE

subsequent periods (289,566) (214,939)
Other comprehensive income notto REZHBBELAEHIEZE

be reclassified to profit or loss in EalEMmEEEA

subsequent periods:
Revaluation of asset EEER 12 4,090 —
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AEEHMP2EER

FOR THE YEAR (285,476) (214,939)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEEERARE

FOR THE YEAR 221,060 1,042,181
Attributable to: 7B

Ordinary equity holders of the AAREBEZMEE

Company 201,908 847,179
Non-controlling interests FERER 19,152 195,002

221,060 1,042,181

BREEMERAT —T—LEH @



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Z& B #& AR R+

31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments

Construction in progress

Trademarks

Investment in an associate

Prepayments

Long term rental deposits

Long term held-to-maturity
investments

Available-for-sale investments

Deferred tax asset

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Bills receivable

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Held-to-maturity investments

Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets classified
as held for sale

Assets of a disposal group classified
as held for sale

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Bills payable

Other payables, accrued liabilities
and deposit received

Due to an associate

Derivative financial liabilities

Tax payable

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES
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2017 2016
—E—tF —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BET T
1,313,688 1,427,803
459,403 416,734
12,733 20,314
27,018 51,610
33,293 33,293
75,243 84,251
37,270 42,468
112,776 96,848
220,003 514,111
54,250 —
28,359 —
2,374,036 2,687,432
2,050,435 2,047,191
665,388 584,190
123,507 113,409
446,273 724,813
265,531 128,470
14,315 34,050
4,022,914 3,005,253
7,588,363 6,637,376
3,878 —
9,188 —
7,601,429 6,637,376
812,514 953,357
21,961 24,368
473,991 678,329
57,001 73,033
12,231 4,525
15,076 21,297
2,436,599 529,707
3,829,373 2,284,616
3,772,056 4,352,760
6,146,092 7,040,192




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 42 & BI#& AR R+

31 March 2017 =F—tF=H=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$000 HK$°000
BET T B F T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITER 28 80,682 313,258
Deferred tax liabilities EIEHRIEEE 29 168,007 166,305
Total non-current liabilities WIERBERB 248,689 479,563
Net assets BEEFH 5,897,403 6,560,629
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to ordinary equity A AR EBEXFEE
holders of the Company LR
Issued capital BBITRA 30 69,085 69,085
Reserves HiE 31 4,938,405 5,593,149
Proposed final and special dividends BIRRERERIIRE 10 442,143 469,777
5,449,633 6,132,011
Non-controlling interests FERER 447,770 428,618
Total equity BRER 5,897,403 6,560,629
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung EE EE
Director Director BEWE THRE

BREEMERAT —T—LEH @
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SR ERER

Year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =—ZE—+tF=H=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of profit or loss of an
associate, net of tax
Interest income
Net fair value gains on foreign
exchange derivative financial
instruments
Net fair value loss/(gain) on
investment properties
Depreciation
Recognition of prepaid land lease
payments
Net gain on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of trademarks
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Provision/(write-back of provision)
for slow-moving inventories
Impairment/(reversal of impairment)
of trade receivables

Increase in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills
receivables

REFSRERE

FR %1 A1 3% R
JHEE
B % & A
EEBENRER  REEZ
FEE
FE WA
MEFTEEBMTIADNARER

=R

REMERARERERE
(fzs) =48

e

BN EER 2R

HEWX BERRBER
Wik AR

HEERR S

HE—KB AWK

RBFEEE (EERE)

FE W BR ROR B, CRLE R E)

FEEm
BRI R RER A (38 4n)

Decrease in prepayments, deposits and FE{f 718 « 5] & Rk H At FEUR BR

other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in an amount due
to an associate
Decrease in trade and bills payables
Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accrued liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Profits taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating
activities

Q TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

TR D
FE A9 Bk & 1 B IR
‘i, Gid)
EAERAREERD
HitEN R K EFEE
8, GR)

RefmBERE
2GR

HEMSRERNANFHE

33

—E—tF
HK$°000
BT T

2016

HK$'000
BEF T

520,057 1,344,536
26,993 14,908
7772 (34,423)
(81,338) (93,085)
(21,497) (7,774)
(34,479) 6,520
255,848 276,690
552 678
(2,941) (2,848)
(152,400) (396,400)
— (268,918)
(17,666) 14,379
(1,061) 2,154
499,840 856,417
(108,051) (275,657)
(111,766) 211,116
249,492 18,564
(11,853) 69,973
(143,251) (79,098)
(51,938) 163,430
322,473 964,745
(46,331) (85,696)
276,142 879,049




Consolidated

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Net proceeds from disposal of
derivative financial instruments

Dividends received from an associate

Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment

Additions to construction in progress

Purchase of available-for-sale
investments

Net redemption/(purchases) of held-to-
maturity investments

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of trademarks

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary

Increase in long term rental deposits

Decrease in time and structured
deposits with original maturity of

over three months when acquired

Net cash flows from investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

New interest-bearing bank borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing

activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Foreign exchange adjustments

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

Statement of Cash Flows S8 RERER

Year ended 31 March 2017 B2 —&E—+tF=H=1+—HIFE
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2017
—g-tf
HK$°000
BEF T

2016

HK$'000
BEFTT

81,338 86,573
48,803 (16,448)

— 50,000
(200,899) (186,017)
(9,511) (21,308)
(54,250) —
157,047 (644,257)
11,519 8,334

— 396,400

— 33,927
(21,025) (5,665)
714,109 1,732,598
727,131 1,434,137
7,150,036 2,906,657
(5,456,398) (3,970,318)
(26,993) (14,908)
(884,286) (801,384)
782,359 (1,879,953)
1,785,632 433,233
1,841,644 1,475,853
(53,862) (67,442)
3,573,414 1,841,644
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SR ERER

Year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =—ZE—+tF=H=+—HIFE

2016
—B—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReERBEE/UERIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances RERBITFER 24 307,026 306,932
Non-pledged time deposits with REITZB=ZEARNTEZ

original maturity within three BRFEHER

months when acquired 24 3,266,388 1,534,712
Non-pledged time deposits with RITLA=Z@EANLREHZ

original maturity of over three BIERAERER

months when acquired 24 449,500 1,163,609

Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReRBELEEY WER

in the consolidated statement of FERBRRE
financial position 4,022,914 3,005,253
Less: Non-pledged time deposits B RETM B =188 W EEH
with original maturity of ZERBEHER
over three months when
acquired (449,500) (1,163,609)

Cash and cash equivalents as stated RekRBESEEY  WHR
in the consolidated statement BABERER
of cash flows 3,573,414 1,841,644
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31 March 2017 =F—tF=H=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEREEEH

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company BXRXEEBERAADABREEZMR L
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company ZEREETQAT  ARAZEMBEES
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
Bermuda. The principal place of business of Texwinca Holdings HM 11, Bermuda s K EE BB R AT E
Limited is located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza, Tower I, 223 Hing TN AR B A XEE T K235
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong. HHEESE_E+ R E-

During the year, the Group was involved in the following MRAFEE  REBXZELLUTEK:

principal activities:

. Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn; o HBWMRMYZEHERER
. Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and o EMRNEIMZTERDH

accessories;

. Provision of franchise services; o RMUBIFLERY
. Provision of repair and maintenance services for motor o REREHBRERE &

vehicles; and

. Properties investment. o MERE-
Information of subsidiaries B A RER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: AABZEEMB AR ZHEBNOT :
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered attributable to the
business share capital Company Principal activities
S B BERTER/ EAFEEERZ
RE ¥R ERERA B = TEEH
2017 2016
“B—tF ZB-RF
Trustland Inc* British Virgin Islands ~ US$18,000 100 100 Investment holding
RERLZHE 18,0003 7T REER
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Sale of knitted fabric and
HK$1,000 and dyed yarn
Non-voting
deferred
HK$3,125,000
KERBERD A &8 EBRA HEHBAPIRELD
78 151,000 7T &
BERERELRA

78 #3,125,000 7T

Texwinca Enterprises (China) British Virgin Islands/  US$1 100 100 Investment holding and
Limited Hong Kong trading of machines
BxE(BEBERARDLE REELZHEE B8 1%n REZBRREERKE
Dongguan Texwinca Textile &  PRC/Mainland China HK$2,557,950,000 100 100 Production, dyeing and
Garment Limited* sale of knitted fabric
and yarn
REBAEHBRRERAA FEPEAE 7% 2,557,950,000 7T HEBTRBOZEHER
BR

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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FE R AR

A R 1,000,000 7T

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. QARREEER @)
Information of subsidiaries (continued) MEBATRER (&
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered attributable to the
business share capital Company Principal activities
M, B BRTEE/ EREELESZ
K& i EERERA B ®E TEEH
2017 2016
—2-tHF ZEB-RF
Nice Dyeing Factory Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Procurement of raw
(Macao Commercial Offshore) materials and sale of
Limited* knitted fabric
KERKRCRMIB R ERSE) R & P9 % 100,000 7T IR MR R HE 8
BRAR* 8w
Texwinca Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of management
services
BREEXERLA &8 B2 RMUEERY
Win Ready Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Property holding
HK$10 and
Non-voting
deferred HK$2
KEEXBERLE &8 EERABBIOTR FEME
ERERELRA
B2 T
Winlife Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$15,903,100 100 100 Property holding
KEFTERRDH &8 515,903,100 7T BEME
Baleno Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/  US$20,000 64 64 Investment holding,
Hong Kong retailing of casual
apparel and accessories
BEBETMERD KEELZHEB/EE  20000E% REZKR BERRHY2
2€
Baleno Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
WA RN E B 7B #510,000 7T ERERBHNEER
Guangzhou Friendship PRC/Mainland China HK$103,800,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
Baleno Co. Ltd.* of casual apparel and
accessories
BMNEARERROGERIT FEFEKE 75 103,800,000 7T EREBHN2EER
FSTAIRGAERAT* PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB1,000,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution

of casual apparel and
accessories
BERERHNETER
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Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &E M=

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Beijing Xing Yu Baleno Garment

& Decoration Co. Ltd*

1t 5 5 3 e B AR 2 R &
BRAR*

Chongging Dasheng
Baleno Co. Ltd*

EEREUREHRBHERIA*

Tianjin Baleno Co. Ltd*

KRR REMERD & *

Silver Kingdom Limited*

BERERAA*

Bigpoint Limited

RYEER A A

Highrich Corporation*

RKEERAF*

Successful Channel Corporation*

R EE R E*

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration and
business

HEMARL ER

REXHR

PRC/Mainland China

FE R E AR

PRC/Mainland China

FE R E AR

PRC/Mainland China

FE R E AR

British Virgin Islands/
Taiwan

RBELES, &8

British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China

REELES/
L= PN

British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China

REELES/
L= PN

British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China

REELHEE
B AR

registered
share capital
BRTEE/
EERERA

US$500,000

500,000 T

HK$3,880,000

785 3,880,000 7T

RMB700,000

A R #700,000 7T

uss$1

127

uss$1

uss$1

uss$1

1.

31 March 2017 =F—tF=H=+—H

APEIREBER @)
WD TER (4

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
EREELESZ
B ®E
2017
—E—tE

Principal activities

EBRY
2016
X%

64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

ERRBN2EER
788

64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

BREGUZZTER
k|

64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

ERRBNETER
788
64 64 Sub-letting of properties
SHEME
100 100 Holding of trademarks

and provision of

franchise services
FEBERRMEET

BER%

64 64 Provision of management
services and sub-
licensing of trademarks

RHEEERBER
REBRRE

64 64 Property holding

ISEEE/ES

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. ARREEER @)

Information of subsidiaries (continued) MEARER (&

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registration and registered attributable to the

business share capital Company Principal activities
M, B BERTER/ EREELESZ

REEHE BEERRRA LU TEEY
2017 2016
—g—tF —F-XE

FARIER R RA B> PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB1,010,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

R E KR AR 1,010,000 7T ERRBHYCEER
RENeREERRAR PRC/Mainland China ~ RMBS5,880,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution

of casual apparel and
accessories

R E KR AR #5,880,0007¢ BREGUZZTER
RDIeIRED B IRA B> PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB500,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution

of casual apparel and
accessories

R E KR AR #500,0007C BREGUZTER
PR B JE 2% R 8 PR 2 = PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB600,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution

of casual apparel and
accessories

HE KR AR #600,0007 ERRBNETER
Dalian Baleno Decoration PRC/Mainland China HK$2,100,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
Co. Ltd.* of casual apparel and
accessories

RE eI ERENE R A T BB KR 72,100,000 7T BERERANZEER

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member * WHAZKENEBFEBR S —ZKE
firm of the Ernst & Young global network FHAT B FTEIRR A E &% ©

All subsidiaries other than Trustland Inc are indirectly held by FRTrustland Inc7h > FTE KB A RHFH AR D
the Company. AEEEE -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in ERFASIEADBD cHMBEAR  EERH
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for HEHAEEAFECEEBRNETELE
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the RERNFAEAEEFEZIENH - ES
Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of REFIMEWNBARAESERERAERT
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. T
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2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, certain leasehold land and buildings included in
property, plant and equipment, available-for-sale investments
and derivative financial instruments which have been measured
at fair value. Non-current assets or disposal group held for sale
are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values
less costs to sell as further explained in note 2.4. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.1

31 March 2017 =F—tF=H=+—H
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HEHERERTEESHMIARDIAENE
S AB B IR TR R R IE B AN S FHE D)
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

31 March 2017 =F—tF=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B BERREEZED
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs REBOCHRAEE2HBRBRRENEANT
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements. DT RIS E BB R EED o
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 EBUEBREERE BEEMFEHREERLF
HKAS 28 Amendments  and HKAS 28 Investment Entities: 1055 - BB KHR 1095 FEUKER
Applying the Consolidation & Li*— AlE125RE HEAFNRERE
Exception BEFTERE285E BEFERIE285
((CHED)] KREERE: EHF
BABRZHIIMER
pACH)
HKFRS 11 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting ERAUKBREEDE EEAVERESENSE
for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint AL ACCHIE:N) MK ERFEE
Operations BmlEilEE
(]
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferred Accounts BENKREERNSE EEELKE
1455
HKAS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure BEGTEAE15 FBEEAF IR
Initiative [(CHES)] FEREEZEET
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38  Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 EBEHEANE 165 BB EAE 165
Amendments Clarification of Acceptable Methods REBETERNE REBSTELSE
of Depreciation and Amortisation 3895 (& ET A) B A ETHITE
REH TG LR EE
pACH)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 HEETTEAE165 BB ELFE 1655
Amendments Agriculture: Bearer Plants REBSHENE REBSHERE
4155 (1B ET &) MNFEE LEM
L=E7/a )
HKAS 27 (2011) Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011) Equity EBGERE27 BEBEERFE27
Amendments Method in Separate Financial (ZE2E——F)B5] (=&E——F)Bv
Statements ) B 7 3R 2 1Y HE 02
Z185T
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to a number of HKFRSs —E——FZF ZIBE B BREE
2012-2014 Cycle —E-MFEAHz  BlZ18E
FEME

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28, amendments to HKFRS 11, HKFRS 14, amendments to HKAS
16 and HKAS 41, amendments to HKAS 27 (2011), and certain
amendments included in the Annual Improvements 2012-2014

Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the Group's

financial statements, the nature and impact of the amendments

are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1

include narrow-focus

improvements in respect of the presentation and

disclosure in financial statements. The amendments clarify:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements; and

that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method must be presented in aggregate
as a single line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements

that apply when additional subtotals are presented in the

statement of financial position and the statement of

profit or loss. The amendments have had no significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(0

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle
in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a
business (of which the asset is part) rather than the
economic benefits that are consumed through the use of
the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be
used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise
intangible assets. The amendments are applied
prospectively. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group as the
Group has not used a revenue-based method for the
calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle issued in October
2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Details
of the amendments are as follows:

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes to a plan
of sale or a plan of distribution to owners should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a
continuation of the original plan. Accordingly, there is no
change in the application of the requirements in HKFRS 5.
The amendments also clarify that changing the disposal
method does not change the date of classification of the
non-current assets or disposal group held for sale. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as the
Group did not have any change in the plan of sale or
disposal method in respect of the disposal group held for
sale during the year.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 Sale or Contribution of Assets

Amendments between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers?®
HKFRS 15 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarification
to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts

with Customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases*

HKFRS 2 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification
and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions®

HKFRS 4 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts®

HKAS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure

Initiative’

HKAS 12 Amendments ~ Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition
of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses’

HKAS 40 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of
Investment Property?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?
to HKFRSs 2014 - 2016

Cycle
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

5 No mandatory effective date determined but available for early
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016 that
address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on
the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and the accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification from cash-
settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the
approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies to
cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its
entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the result that it
becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction
from the date of the modification. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 April 2018. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS
9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9.
The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. During 2015, the
Group performed a high-level assessment of the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 9. This preliminary assessment is based on
currently available information and may be subject to changes
arising from further detailed analyses or additional reasonable
and supportable information being made available to the Group
in the future. The expected impacts arising from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS 9
will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to continue
measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held
at fair value. Equity investments currently held as
available-for-sale will be measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the investments are
intended to be held for the foreseeable future and the
Group expects to apply the option to present fair value
changes in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses
recorded in other comprehensive income for the equity
investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss when the
investments are derecognised.

(b) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are
not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected
credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a
lifetime basis. The Group expects to apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses that are
estimated based on the present value of all cash shortfalls
over the remaining life of all of its trade and other
receivables. The Group will perform a more detailed
analysis which considers all reasonable and supportable
information, including forward-looking elements, for
estimation of expected credit losses on its trade and other
receivables upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In June
2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address
the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments
are also intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and
complexity of applying the standard. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018 and is currently assessing the
impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The
standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees —
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability
to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets
the definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in
the lease term and change in future lease payments.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments will result in additional disclosure to be provided
in the financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose of
addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised
losses related to debt instruments measured at fair value,
although they also have a broader application for other
situations. The amendments clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available against which
it can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs to
consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that
deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine future
taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable
profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than
their carrying amount. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of an associate is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investment in the associate, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf &R &R M=

31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, available-for-sale
investments and derivative financial instruments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

EBAHREE(H)

RONBERE  BERRAREMRTRE
EEREFE BEREINASFET -
KR —BEEASHBEELBRERE
B BTRREETRMER AR EE
EREB - AEEREF=ZA=1T—-H#E
THEERENR BRENAMS  TH
FEEBHMEEREBERTIRERSR
ZEMAREBEN BRBEPRKREXRBS
PTG 2BER s BREAREE  BAHRX
EREHchRARaENEBEAREELS
- SBREREEFEM-

HEDFAEEABcREEEEN
(REEEEMAR) TWEHETUE
E-NREELEBEN(REELEMAR)
AWEHBALREREE B AEREE
BE -BEBFREIAZAEBETENA
BHERD -

NEEEREELEN(REELEENA
) 2Ho UK HEENAKER D  HY
ERE B HETETHEREZRSE
HREEZHREERNAR - FRBERTH
ECHEDRBEHELE 2 HBAEERF
REELERCEUD IR

DNRERE
FEEREREHRELAAREBFTEARE
ME THHEERERTEEHIA - 2
RERTEZERERFEIREAFRS
PHEEERMBBRNERRAEREEMX
FHER - DAEFENREBRRHESR
EFEZRENRIRNEEREBEED
SR(EEFTETSBERT)REERZTS
ETHFEE EBERGAEBETSEEARD
EETEAZT S EERBENDIAE
DEBRTE2RENEEREEEER
SURELENZTEHE



Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties) the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit

to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FE2:BENEBE @)
(continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued) AREBEFEGE)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset and certain
financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

0]

(i)

(iii)

or

(b)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of
property, plant and equipment is classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current
assets held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is realised and transferred
directly to retained profits on a systematic basis, as the
corresponding asset is used by the Group. The amount realised
is the difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset and the depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the
excess of the deficit is charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of
the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of an asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s
original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant
portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
asset revaluation reserve and remains there until the subsequent
disposal or retirement of the property, when it is transferred
from the revaluation surplus to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost or revalued amount of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
estimated useful lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 25 years or over the remaining
lease terms, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents plant and machinery under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sales transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset or disposal group must be
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets
or disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable. All
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group
are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after
the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land lease payments classified as held for sale are not
depreciated or amortised.

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level and are not amortised. The useful life of a
trademark with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric and yarn, cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and, for work in progress and finished goods, cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. For casual apparel and accessories, cost
is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all costs
of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal or to make the sale.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial
instruments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
investments when the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets quoted investment fund. Equity investments
classified as available-for-sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available-for-sale are not reversed through the statement of
profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are

recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to
be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses
on debt instruments are reversed through the statement of
profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B iR & M5
31 March 2017 = &—+#=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
3 the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;

and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through”
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Group'’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans
and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, bills
payable, financial liabilities included in other payables, accrued
liabilities and deposit received, an amount due to an associate,
derivative financial liabilities and interest-bearing bank

borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling repurchasing in the near
term. This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &R M=

31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

3 when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

3 in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &R M=

31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FES:HFENME (%)
(continued)
Income tax (continued) Frie®i (&)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
cash at banks, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme in its retailing
operation which allows customers to accumulate award credits
when they purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products
sold and the award credits issued, with the consideration
allocated to the award credits being equal to their fair value.
Fair value is determined by applying statistical techniques.

The fair value of the award credits issued is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, when the services have
been provided;

() rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) franchise and royalty income, on a time proportion basis,
over the franchise periods; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividends

Final and special dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &R M=

31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBEMNEBE @)

(continued)

Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
overseas are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Eﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁi

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an
associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B ®R KisE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates
or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of trademarks

In accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group
determines whether trademarks are impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which the trademarks are related.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of useful lives of trademarks

The Group assessed the useful lives of previously recognised
trademarks. As a result of this assessment, the trademarks were
classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. This
conclusion is supported by the fact that the Group’s trademark
legal rights are capable of being renewed indefinitely at
insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration,
related to well known and long established fashion brands, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are
expected to generate positive cash flows indefinitely. Under
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets the Group re-evaluates the useful
lives of the trademarks each year to determine whether events
or circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite
useful lives of the trademarks. The carrying amount of
trademarks at 31 March 2017 was HK$33,293,000 (2016:
HK$33,293,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) by reference to current prices in an active market
for properties of a different nature, condition and location (or
subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences; (ii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and (iii) independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2017
was HK$459,403,000 (2016: HK$416,734,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement
and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Write-down/write-back of inventories to net realisable value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made based
on the estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will have an impact on the carrying
amounts of the inventories and the write-down charge/write-
back amount in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31 March 2017
was HK$2,050,435,000 (2016: HK$2,047,191,000).

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

FTESTHE R & @)

st T E R (F)
BEITRAFH G
AEBFAUERINEENTERF
H-ERZALER ZEBHERDEE
BERTEAFHNERLEE - LERER
REBATURERRATEHNETHB
BREZEREZ AUEHEER HEH
BACAARARRABYNERRE
BERAEBERRNPBRER  AHET
HEXERESR REFBITLEAES
RERPEE ARESFEHNEBREN
AERFER UREEBESHABERESD
EEXKHAEAERTRAFHNEE-
AER-Z—tF=ZA=Z+—-H2ZKEA
ERBH33,293,000 T (= F—RF B
33,293,0007T) °

REWE R AEGFT

AEBZEFRRRNER  HhBHEG
SEZRTEPRTEMNE R Kt EEY
ENERER(REETENEERH M
) BEURRZEZR (NRBTE
BT SERBAMEROIEIIE LRXZH
£ R REMSERRESHERED
B R(Gi)BIMAEE-

REYMER-_ZT-—LtF=ZA=+—-82zk
T B 58 % 459,403,000 7T (= — X F : 8
#£416,734,0007T) - E—HFEE  BERAR
ARBEFENETEBRIRTHERRME
13 °

el BEEFE E A B FRE
GEDREBEGFEZMHT T B FEMA
ZFHUZRZE - FEMEZHRSEE
REEBHEHHNERGEF BEAEZE
BERREHEINR LA 2G5 BB
BEEAYEIEHEATREHEAZRE
EREERFEMR RBELE - FE
R-ZBE—+tHE=ZA=1+—-HZKHEEAS
7 #2,050,435000 7T ( = & — /N F 18 ¥
2,047,191,0007T) ©



Notes to the Financial Statements B ®R KisE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowances for trade receivables

Impairment allowances for trade receivables are based on the
assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables. The
identification of impairment allowances requires management
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will have an impact on the carrying values of
the receivables and impairment or its reversal in the period in
which such estimate has been changed. The carrying amount of
trade receivables at 31 March 2017 was HK$665,388,000 (2016:
HK$584,190,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn

segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessories segment; and

() the "others” segment principally comprises the provision
of repair and maintenance services for motor vehicles, the

provision of franchise services and properties investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group's
profit before tax except that gain on disposal of trademarks,
gain on disposal of a subsidiary, unallocated corporate expenses,
interest income, finance costs and share of profit or loss of an

associate, net of tax are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits, investment in an associate
and deferred tax asset as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
deposits received, tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4,

H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4,

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference

to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.

(a)

The following tables present revenue, profit and certain

asset, liability and expenditure information of the Group
for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016:

Segment revenue: 2EBA:
Sales to external customers EFHNREF
Intersegment sales PEMZHE
Other revenue HEilA
Total At
Segment results PEEE
Reconciliation il
Gain on disposal of trademarks  H &£ 2 I 3
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B 2 7 I &
Unallocated expenses AABRER
Interest income FEWA
Finance costs BRER
Share of profit or loss of an EUEBENRBE
associate, net of tax BRH&FE
Profit before tax BB A& R
Income tax expense #E
Profit for the year AEERF
Assets and liabilities: BERERE:
Segment assets PREE
Investment in an associate REENRAZRE
Unallocated assets AIBEE
Total assets BEE
Segment liabilities FEER
Unallocated liabilities AABRBE
Total liabilities waE
Other segment information: HtpoEEHR
Depreciation and amortisation 7 & & #i 8
Capital expenditure ERMXH
Provision/(write-back of REGFEEE/
provision) for slow moving (EERE)
inventories
Impairment/(reversal of P BRRALE
impairment) of trade (RLERRE)
receivables
Net fair value loss/(gain) on RENEDAREFE/
investment properties (Wiis) #8
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THEBZHEREBERRZZEBDNZRE

FTE=ZEZERTSERIE

(a)

TERAAEERE-F—LF=A
=t-AR=B-xE=A=+-
AL E 2 %5 BB ERRE
HRE AERZHER

Production, Retailing and distribution
dyeing and sale of of casual apparel and
knitted fabric and yarn accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated
HAHRRLZ
EHRER EREHNZBERT# Hity He iy
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE2-tF ZE-RF ZEB-tF ZZ-RF ZEB-tF ZE-XF ZB-tF ZT-RE ZB-t§f ZEB-R%E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
B¥TT E¥Trn E¥Fn  EMTFn  EMFr  BEFT  EBETR  BETT  BETR BEFT
3,806,760 4,740,937 4,044,197 4,591,517 7,519 10,828 - — 7858476 9,343,282
- — - — 6,317 7,056 (6,317) (7,056) - —
59,903 42,807 7322 6,052 70,508 37,253 (6,468) (5,679) 131,265 80,433
3,866,663 4,783,744 4,051,519 4,597,569 84,344 55,137 (12,785) (12,735) 7,989,741 9,423,715
349,674 665,916 (95,772) (92,533) 74,009 23,041 — — 327,911 596,424
152,400 396,400
— 268,918
(6,827) (29,806)
81,338 93,085
(26,993) (14,908)
(7,772) 34,423
520,057 1,344,536
(13,521) (87,416)
506,536 1,257,120
4,104,125 4419434 1,977,840 2,273,749 502,149 463,259 (428,139)  (614,206) 6,155,975 6,542,236
75,243 84,251
3,744,247 2,698,321
9,975,465 9,324,808
723,180 653,345 731,317 1,178,902 84,018 95,849 (160,817)  (346,884) 1,377,698 1,581,212
2,700,364 1,182,967
4,078,062 2,764,179
168,656 175,954 85,038 100,088 2,709 1,326 - - 256,403 277,368
142,528 110,852 73,079 96,473 - — - — 215,607 207,325
1,700 2,200 (18,426) 12,179 (940) — — - (17,666) 14,379
- — (1,061) 2,154 — — — - (1,061) 2,154
- - — — (34,479) 6,520 - - (34,479) 6,520
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EEIEEN @

(b) HHHE
TRAAEEBE=-E—+tE=A
=+—-AR=ZBE-R"FE=ZA=+-—
BLEEEZHBRARFERSEE
gH

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

4,
Geographical information

The following table presents geographical revenue and
non-current asset information of the Group for the years
ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016:

USA
EY
2017

Mainland China
FE AR

2017

=t S

HK$'000

E¥TT

Others

At
2017
ZE-tf
HK$'000
B¥TT

Consolidated
Ha g4
2017 2016 2017
ZE-tF ZE-RE ZB-tF ZZ-5%
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$'000
AEFrn BEFr BMTr EBEFn

Japan Eliminations
A%

2017
ZE-tf
HKS$'000
E¥TR

Hong Kong

B
2017
=t Sk
HK$'000
A¥FR

216
“B-5E
HK$'000
r

2016
—2-xE
HK$:000

BR TR

2016
—2-5F
HK$'000

ERTR

2016
—g-5%
HK$'000

E¥Fr

2016
—2-xE
HK$000
BRFI

2016

= e
HKS'000
BEFR

(i) Revenue from external (i) 3% F

customers BA:
Segment revenue: FEUN:
Sales to external EFHR
customers EE 194120 2704253 4035970 4439339 869614 1068698 860295 972465 145477 1585 - 2858476 9343282
(i)Non-current assets: (i) FREBEE :

Non-current assets FRDAE - — 1454005 1,597,719 - — 4599 839950 54820 56220  (134776) (417416) 1958648 2,076,473
The Group's geographical revenue and non-current assets AEEMBBARFERBEEZEER
information, excluding long term rental deposits, long (TEERBHEAsZe REBZEE
term held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale HHRE THEERERELERIE
investments, and deferred tax asset, are based on the EE)IDRRBETSREEZME
locations of the markets and assets, respectively. e

(c) Information about major customers 0 FEEFEFZzEH

No sales to a single external customer (2016: nil)
contributed more than 10% to the Group’'s revenue
during the year.

TER BEE-IHIREBEF(ZF -
NRECE)NBEEEAREEBNHKRA
10% L £ o
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the Group’s net invoiced value of goods

WA~ HAb AR WS

WA THEAEBEEEE EARRER
EEMNARCHEREFE  FMRAEARS
MEENSTFREERERNKA -

sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts; the value

of services rendered and franchise and royalty income.

WA BB ARKESFWT

An analysis of the revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT B F T
Revenue: PN
Sale of goods HEEm 7,833,928 9,310,193
Rendering of services RERS 17,612 27,826
Franchise and royalty income BHREREMBA 6,936 5,263
7,858,476 9,343,282
Other income and gains: H g A R s
Interest income FE WA 81,338 93,085
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange SNESTESRITEAABEKES
derivative financial instruments (note 23) FEE (KL 23) 21,497 7,774
Rental income on investment properties REMEHRS WAL 29,133 23,568
Compensation from suppliers for MREESHEREE
defective goods 6,283 11,253
Net gain on disposal of items of property, HEE BMERREBER
plant and equipment W= F R 2,941 2,848
Government subsidies BUAT 7 B 3K 12,144 6,279
Net fair value gain on investment properties REME N REBERZEFE 34,479 —
Sundry income HMIEW A 24,788 28,711
212,603 173,518
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBAGEF
The Group'’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBZBRBEAENS NG, (L) :
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BEF T
Cost of inventories sold* EEEBEW Z R 5,367,362 6,170,639
Depreciation E 12 255,848 276,690
Recognition of prepaid land lease FENTHEERZER
payments 14 552 678

Employee benefit expenses, including EE®RMNBEX BEESH
directors’ and senior management'’s SREBASMNS (HE7):
remuneration (note 7):

Wages, salaries and other allowances T & % Rk HEM)ZEY 1,313,211 1,508,713
Retirement benefit scheme RRE R FT BIE X
contributions 5,737 6,416
1,318,948 1,515,129

Minimum lease payments under REHET2THRETF

operating leases in respect of land BREEEER

and buildings 483,513 540,871
Gain on disposal of trademarks® HEEZWEe (152,400) (396,400)
Contingent rents under operating KEPET2HZAES

leases 483,847 512,706
Auditor’s remuneration R & 2,767 2,795
Net foreign exchange gain, excluding [E XU 5% @ T8IE

net fair value gain on foreign NESTESRIAEDNAE

exchange derivative financial Wi F5E

instruments (46,884) (37,362)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment R &Y% A LEKE ()

properties* RER* 13 (34,479) 6,520
Gross rental income on investment REEHSWALTE

properties* (29,133) (23,568)
Less: Outgoings WX 1,947 1,848
Net rental income HeW A FE (27,186) (21,720)
Provision/(write-back of provision) REGEEEE(EEEE)

for slow-moving inventories (17,666) 14,379
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) EWEFRE CRERRE)*

of trade receivables* 22 (1,061) 2,154
Net gain on disposal of items of HEVE BERZHFHEER

property, plant and equipment* Wz F B+ (2,941) (2,848)

BREEMERAT —E—LEH @
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRF AR (@)

# Cost of inventories sold includes HK$521,027,000 (2016: # EEEYZzHABEIEFTHSE THK #T
HK$605,027,000) of staff costs, depreciation, minimum lease E KEHETZRBEHEARRETFE
payments under operating leases and provision/write-back of M O] B 521,027,000 (= FE— N
provision for slow-moving inventories which are also included in F : jB 605027000 ) TR L& EE AR
the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these BRI o
types of expenses.

* These items are included in the “Other operating expenses, * ZEIEHOGAGEERE AN EMEEES
net”/”Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated o R TEMKAR W [H e
statement of profit or loss.

@ During the year, a trademark was disposed of at a consideration of @ RER  — B 1E LB 85152400000 5T 1€ 18 H
HK$152,400,000, which was settled by deposit received. & UEIKETSEE -

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S 7. BEENEREEAEBMEREN

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEEFMES

EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration EEMSE

Directors’ remuneration paid for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

BEWHRE BB QT KB 5E383(1)()
b)) OROERABDURBEESFNEER)
BOIE=—F XEEIXNESHE2HE
LU

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Fees: WwWE
Executive directors HTES 20 20
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHTES 1,320 1,245
1,340 1,265
Other emoluments: HiE & -
Executive directors: HITES :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe 2RI RESEF 23,567 23,749
Performance related bonuses* REH WA 58,900 43,200
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIKER T EE R 18 21

Long service payment on retirement REBRKEEAH R
R & —_ 135

Compensation for non-competition TERFRBNHE
undertaking — 4,500
82,485 71,605
83,825 72,870

* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to * KAFEHITEEEE BB AT ZEER

discretionary performance payments not exceeding a certain

BB ELEFE T ENEERBEIELM
RBEH AL - B GUEEZ REHHTE
ARRBELFEZEFZRARERZXE
EE -

percentage of the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company. The performance related bonuses paid to each
director was determined with reference to the performance of the

director and the results of the Group of last year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(a)

(b)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing
Law Brian Chung Nin

B4R
e
B

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year

(2016: nil).

Executive directors

31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

EENESHREBEAEMEREN
BESHFMNEES @

EsME (@)
(a) BUFBITESE
RFAEXNTFEIFATEEZZ

wewmT:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
440 415
440 415
440 415
1,320 1,245
RER TR (ZZE-—ARF 8)EPB

VFRBTEENHEHMME -

(b) HITEE

Salaries, Retirement Compensation
allowances Performance benefit Long service for non-
and benefits related scheme payment on competition Total
in kind bonuses* contributions  retirement undertaking remuneration
H& - 2H RIERE
EZ KA REHH BAEFN XGRS TERF
ik B FEAL* =T & Bt % R % & RENAEE MeBE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT B¥FT BEFR BT BT
2017 —E-tF
Poon Bun Chak &# 2 10 15,707 44,000 — — — 59,717
Ting Kit Chung T8 10 7,860 14,900 18 — — 22,788
20 23,567 58,900 18 - - 82,505
2016 —E-Rf
Poon Bun Chak  7&# 2 10 14,537 31,930 — — — 46,477
Poon Kei Chak  J&E#Z
(resigned on (R=ZZF-8F
1 June 2015) ~NH— HAEE) — 1,600 420 3 135 4,500 6,658
TingKit Chung T £ 10 7,612 10,850 18 — — 18,490
20 23,749 43,200 21 135 4,500 71,625
* The performance related bonuses paid to each director was * ENENEFZ KRB HTEALZIRIE

determined with reference to the performance of the
director and the results of the Group of last year.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

L FEZEECRAREB AR

o

TEESRFAREXRBEHNEME
A& 8 Z 5 -

BREEMERAT —T—LEH @
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7.
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)
Senior management’s remuneration
Senior management’s remuneration for the year was within the

following band:

EENEHREBAEMEREAN
BSHMES @)

EREEAEMS
AEECEXNBERERAEMEBR TS
HE

2017 2016
—E—tF
Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AZ

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 75 %53,000,001 T E
78 ¥ 3,500,000 7T

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid individuals employed by the Group during
the year included two directors (2016: three), details of whose
remuneration are set out in the “Directors’ remuneration”
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
three (2016: two) highest paid employees, who are not directors

of the Company, are as follows:

AuBEHMES
AERAUAEBEZESFMALBE =X
EE(ZZ—RF =) EFMBEMACD
BRUENIESHME IR BT = (=F
—ANF I ESHFHEE(HLELRLD
AES)NAFEHFMFROT

2017 2016

—E—tF —EB-RE

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRFELSEAN 10,268 6,298
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ERBER T EIHR 54 36
10,322 6,334

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

AFEOXNHESRETHEEHSE
ATHHE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A # AE

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 753,000,001 T &
78 #5 3,500,000 7T
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31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

FINANCE COSTS 8. HMBEAR
2017 2016
—B—tF ZE-RF
HK$000 HK$000
BETFT BT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERREZFE 26,993 14,908
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. BiE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EBANEGHERFARETBRBM Z M5
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in ERBER U E165%(ZF — < F:
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable 16.5%) REBEHF - T HM B EHERFE
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in HE DREBEAEEEBLERERERE
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. B2RITHEFE -
2017 2016
—E—tfF —ET-RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BETFT BT
Hong Kong and Mainland China: BEBRPEKRRE:
Current year provision KEEFEEME 39,247 73,003
Under/(over)-provision in prior years AEEBETEGBE) 931 (1,190)
Deferred tax (note 29) R IE (B3 29) (26,657) 15,600
Elsewhere: Hithih = :
Current year provision KNEEFEME — 3
Total tax charge for the year AEEHEES 13,521 87,416

BREEMERAT —T—LEH @
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9. BIE#@)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BERBAAANGREMBATRMEREER
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the ZBBANDER U E EER EHE 2B EH
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at THAFERERRERBERFGHNOT !

the effective tax rate are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF
HKS$000 HK$°000
BT T B F T
Profit before tax RR B A1 % A 520,057 1,344,536
Tax at the domestic tax rates applicable to RERREBEREEERRR
profits in the jurisdictions concerned ZEMBRERFTENTIE 81,715 233,269
Adjustments in respect of current tax of RAEFENEBHERE
previous years 931 (1,190)
Loss/(profit) attributable to an associate R N EEE S ORF) 659 (7,507)
Income not subject to tax BAHB 2B (115,603) (216,920)
Expenses not deductible for tax FAERBEINRZER 56,583 45,338
Effect of withholding tax at 5% or 10% on the FiZAR&EE KM E A 7 0
distributable profits of the Group's 2R E R 5% 3 10% FE
PRC subsidiaries (note 29) THIEBWEE (ME29) (4,565) 15,117
Unrecognised deferred tax assets on tax losses FHiIEE B 2 R ERIEL
RIBEE 24,522 25,204
Tax losses utilised from previous periods CEBRABEHECZHIEBEEE (5,869) (7,423)
Recognition of deferred tax assets on tax losses ¥f LRI KRN EEHERR
previously not recognised (note 29) BB IEE B (M7 29) (28,359) —
Others HAth 3,507 1,528
Tax charge for the year REEFHE 13,521 87,416
The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting to FEALBE 4 N T B 18 5B 8 13,781,000 7T (=
HK$3,781,000 (2016: HK$11,074,000) is included in “Share of B —NE B H11,074,000T) B AGR S
profit or loss of an associate, net of tax” in the consolidated BER2[EABEATERS BRiES
statement of profit or loss. X8 | o
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10. DIVIDENDS

11.

Interim dividend of HK30.0 cents

10.

FHEIR S B RIBH30.01L

31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

iR E

2017
—E—tF

2016
—E-RE
HK$’000
BT T

HK$000
BEFT

(2016: HK28.0 cents) per share (ZE—NEF . B¥28.01L) 414,509 386,875
Proposed final dividend of HK32.0 cents BORRHA R 28 IR 8 15 32.01L
(2016: HK16.0 cents) per share (ZZ—RF B 16.04L) 442,143 221,071
Nil proposed special dividend BRI IR B
(2016: HK18.0 cents per share) (ZZE—XRF 8RB 18.011) — 248,706
856,652 856,652
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the AEERRZAHEREAR $’ ARER

approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue of 1,381,696,104 (2016: 1,381,696,104) during the
year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

11.

Eﬂﬁ%%?ﬂ’ﬂﬂﬁ%?@ik%t 8o

BEALCAEEREMEESR
2R

EXBRENDEALAAEBEEZNE
EREZFERBANRRZFANC BT
E @ F%1,381,696,104 ( = & — <

( =
1,381,696,104 %) 2 MNEFIHI R EHHE o

AEBREBE-Z-—tR-ZE-—<E=ZA
=t- EEEEWE%E%TTE’\J?’%EW@
HEENEER-

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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31 March 2017 = &—+#=HA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. ¥ BERRKHE

Furniture,

Leasehold fixtures Motor

31 March 2017
At 1 April 2016:

Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2016, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation provided
during the year (note 6)

Surplus on revaluation

Transfer to investment
properties (note 13)

Transfer from construction
in progress (note 15)

Transfer to non-current
assets held for sale
(note 25)

—EB-k#F
=ZA=+-H
RZB—RF
MA—R:
BASHE

R MERRAE

land and
buildings

HELHR

B
HK$000
BETT

Leasehold
improvements

BRETEE
HK$000
BEFT

Plant and
machinery

BB R
HK$000
BEFT

and office

equipment

B £BER
BAERE
HK$000

EBY T

vehicles
and yacht

HER U
HK$000
BT

Total

£
HK$000
BEFT

fREFE

R-B-REF
mBE—A:
CMBREFNE
R E
A=
HeE
FRITEEE
(KtaF6)
BB
BEREYE
(HtaE13)
HREIREA
(Kt3F15)
BEHEAGEN
krBEE
(Kt3F25)

Transfer to asset of a disposal EZ 5 A S ER H

group held for sale
(note 25)

Foreign exchange
adjustments

At 31 March 2017, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 31 March 2017:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

Analysis of cost or valuation:

At cost

EHBEE
(Kt3F25)
SNEFE

W-T—t5&
=A=t-R"
EHBREHER
BE

RZE—+F
ZA=+—-H:
BARSEE
R MEREE

IREFE

BRA S E D AT
A

At 31 March 1992 valuation R—hh =%

=ZA=t—-RAftE

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

1,267,955 784292 3,056,867 252,903 98,670 5,460,687
(658,238) (691,170)  (2,381,170) (231,034) (71,272)  (4,032,884)
609,717 93,122 675,697 21,869 27,398 1,427,803
609,717 93,122 675,697 21,869 27,398 1,427,803

— 74,444 109,018 13,086 9,548 206,096

(943) @) (6,035) (366) (1,230) (8,578)
(48,865) (76,751) (113,164) (8,810) (8,258)  (255,848)
4,090 — — — — 4,090
(5,044) — — — — (5,044)
8,119 — 23,539 1 — 31,669
(3,878) — — — — (3,878)
(2,589) — — — — (2,589)
(31,955) (4,046) (41,660) (1,190) (1,182) (80,033)
528,652 86,765 647,395 24,600 26,276 1,313,688
1,174,257 793,686 2,908,127 231,748 95,663 5,203,481
(645,605) (706,921)  (2,260,732) (207,148) (69,387)  (3,889,793)
528,652 86,765 647,395 24,600 26276 1,313,688
1,160,655 793,686 2,908,127 231,748 95,663 5,189,879
13,602 — — — — 13,602
1,174,257 793,686 2,908,127 231,748 95,663 5,203,481




Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &E M=

31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Furniture,

12. ¥ BERRKREm®E)

Leasehold fixtures Motor
land and Leasehold Plant and and office vehicles
buildings  improvements machinery equipment and yacht Total
HELHR B BER
BF HEEBFEEL HEERER BAERE REREE =
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFTT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
31 March 2016 —BE-Xf
=ZA=+-H
At 1 April 2015: RZB—REF
A—8
Cost or valuation BAREE 1,373,363 807,254 3,196,113 259,419 100,208 5,736,357
Accumulated depreciation  REFHTE RIFE
and impairment (661,549) (709,751) (2,438,665) (238,010) (80,682) (4,128,657)
Net carrying amount BREEE 711,814 97,503 757,448 21,409 19,526 1,607,700
At 1 April 2015, net of R-ZZE-HFMWMA
accumulated depreciation  —H ' EIBRE &
and impairment WERRE 711,814 97,503 757,448 21,409 19,526 1,607,700
Additions wE — 86,571 67,103 11,467 20,876 186,017
Disposals HE — (152) (215) (396) (4,723) (5,486)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-—HEBAR
(note 33) (Ft&E33) (24,166) — — — — (24,166)
Depreciation provided FERNITEERE
during the year (note 6) (Bt5F6) (51,933) (87,056) (120,324) (9,719) (7,658) (276,690)
Transfer from construction fEE Ti2&E A
in progress (note 15) (KtaF15) — — 2,110 — — 2,110
Foreign exchange INE AR
adjustments (25,998) (3,744) (30,425) (892) (623) (61,682)
At 31 March 2016, net of R-ZB—XRF
accumulated depreciaton =FA=+-—H "
and impairment EHREFHE
K& 609,717 93,122 675,697 21,869 27,398 1,427,803
At 31 March 2016: NZE-—RE
ZA=t+—-H:
Cost or valuation BAREE 1,267,955 784,292 3,056,867 252,903 98,670 5,460,687
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTERBE
and impairment (658,238) (691,170) (2,381,170) (231,034) (71,272) (4,032,884)
Net carrying amount REFE 609,717 93,122 675,697 21,869 27,398 1,427,803
Analysis of cost or valuation: B{Z 8§ & & 2 #f :
At cost AR 1,254,353 784,292 3,056,867 252,903 98,670 5,447,085
At 31 March 1992 valuation R—hh =%
ZA=t-AftE 13,602 — — — — 13,602
1,267,955 784,292 3,056,867 252,903 98,670 5,460,687
BAEEEERAT —T—LER @
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2017 = &—+#=HA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. ¥ BERRZE@

An analysis of the leasehold land and buildings is as follows:

2017

—E—t&

1992
Professional
valuation
—Ah=%F
BEXfGE
HK$000
BETT

Cost

A
HK$°000
BETFT

HEXHREFOFMT :

2016
A%
1992
Professional
valuation Cost Total
—hhZ=%F
HEMtE
HK$000

BETT

Total

it
HK$000
BUFT

B
HK$°000

BEFT

att
HK$°000
BT

Medium term leasehold land and ~ fIREEzHHEE
buildings situated in Hong Kong T REF 13,602 83,399 97,001 13,602 83,399 97,001
Medium term leasehold land and I RAEB LSz F R
buildings situated outside HELHRIET
Hong Kong — 1,077,256 1,077,256 — 1,170,954 1,170,954
13,602 1,160,655 1,174,257 13,602 1,254,353 1,267,955
During the year, a building was transferred to an investment RER —EBFHERERAZERARLERR
property since the date of change in use. Such building was EYPE-ZETHEESS2RMBOEVERE

revalued at the date of change in use by a valuation performed
by the directors by reference to the value of adjacent properties
at an aggregate open market value of HK$5,044,000 based on
their then existing use. A revaluation surplus of HK$4,090,000
resulting from the above valuation was credited to the asset
revaluation reserve.

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were
revalued in 1992 by independent professionally qualified
valuers. Since 1993, no further revaluation of the Group's
leasehold land and buildings had been carried out as the Group
has relied upon the exemption granted under the transitional
provisions in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment, from the requirement to carry out future
revaluations of its property, plant and equipment which were
stated at valuation at that time. Had such leasehold land and
buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their carrying amounts would have been
approximately HK$3,151,000 (2016: HK$3,587,000).

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

BHABRACEBEEGRZAMMSERSYE
5,044,000t - A M BEGFIEECERE
E2 BB 14,000,000 TR AEEEMLHE
WO

BOPHEELTHREFER-NAWAZF
RBUEXGEMETEG -AEBA—
AWh=F UEHHBE L REFE
E-SENGE BAEEREBSHE
BIZE1655 % BB R REFESARBIE
PR HRRBEBUERMGEARNY
X BERRBEFNRERBEEM - i
ZEHETHREFRELRARRTIN
Bk HIREERLNARHBY3,151,000 7T
(=2 —75 1 8%3,587,0007T) °
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31 March 2017 —&—+tF=H=+—H
13. REWE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2017 2016

—®—tF CB-AE

HK$000 HK$000

BT T BETF T

Carrying amount at beginning of year REPEREE 416,734 425,303
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments NABRAEN KRG (FHB)

(note 6) FER (Kfate) 34,479 (6,520)

Transfer from property, plant and equipment H¥% - BMERZHE A

(note 12) (Btat12) 5,044 —

Foreign exchange adjustments SEFE 3,146 (2,049)

Carrying amount at end of year RERKEE 459,403 416,734

The investment properties with carrying values of
HK$405,880,000 (2016: HK$367,470,000), HK$48,479,000 (2016:
HK$49,264,000) and HK$5,044,000 (2016: Nil) are situated in
Hong Kong, Taiwan and the Mainland China, respectively. As at
31 March 2017, the investment properties consist of 1
commercial property, 13 industrial properties, 1 residential
property and 2 car park lots in Hong Kong, Taiwan and the
Mainland China. The directors of the Company have determined
that the investment properties consist of three classes of assets,
i.e.,, commercial, industrial and residential properties, based on
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued on 31
March 2017 based on valuations performed by Chung, Chan &
Associates and APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers. The investment
properties in Taiwan were revalued on 31 March 2017 based on
valuation performed by Colliers International Valuation (Taiwan)
& Co., independent professionally qualified valuer. The
investment property in the Mainland China was revalued at 31
March 2017 based on a valuation performed by the directors by
reference to the value of adjacent properties. Each year, the
Company's board of directors decides to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group’s investment properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s financial controller has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results once a year when the valuation is performed
for annual financial reporting.

BR ™ {8 A& 78 % 405,880,000t ( = & — X
% 1 78 #367,470,000 7T ) ~ 8 ¥ 48,479,000
(=T — X F . #¥%49,264,000T) & %
#5,044,000C (=2 —RE: FNEH)HR
BEYESBVURES AERPEKRE-
R-ZB—t+tHE=ZA=+—0B REYXES
FUREB AERPEREZI1EEE
BF BEIZEEF 1EBT=WEEK2ME
B -REFREVEZHEE  HEEKA
B AARESERUREVERE=EE
EERAR —EERT ITEEFRE
EYE -

RZZE-tF=ZRA=+—-H UREEHN
REMERBEREXRER B NEMSE
ETREAREEFERBERERABET
Ef-R=ZZFZ—tHE=ZA=+—-H LR
BENRENMEREREXER 2B LA
EMSHEBRTBEGEMBRSSHTE
TEM-URPEARENRENELRES
SRENENR=_Z-—LtF=ZA=+—H
CEBEETHE BFRAQAZEZTIR
EEANBLEEMEEHAEEZREY
FETHBEE BEEMZBREERA
WHEHE BE BIUMKREEHESEE
BRE-REB Y BEAEREERIRM
BEERBF-ARNERFENBRRFHE
RERETR®

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REWE @)
The investment properties are leased to third parties under REYEDUKREHNOBFE=% 54
operating leases, further summary details of which are included BRE NI R EE35@) ©

in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

Fair value hierarchy ARESER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRHAPAREVENDAABITES R :

hierarchy of the investment properties:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2017
R-B—tF=A=+—HANARETE
Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs

REBTSE BEAUTERE EATTEE

MRE HEARE RPN E

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(B—%) (B=H) (B=#&)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT B F T BT B FT

Recurring fair value BUTHELEMEN
measurement for: AREFE:
Commercial properties BEEF — — 48,479 48,479
Industrial properties THEF — — 405,880 405,880
Residential property TEME — 5,044 — 5,044

— 5,044 454,359 459,403

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2016
R-ZB—RE=ZA=+—HWARETE
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs

RERTSE EATEE EXATUEERE

HIRE @ ARE LN 6

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(BB—#) (=) (B=4)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT BT B F T
Recurring fair value BUTHELEMEN
measurement for: AREFE:
Commercial properties BEEF — — 49,264 49,264
Industrial properties THEF — — 367,470 367,470

— — 416,734 416,734

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into

or out of Level 3 (2016: nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 April 2015
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments

Foreign exchange adjustments

Carrying amount at 31 March 2016 and
at 1 April 2016

Net gain/(loss) from fair value
adjustments

Transfer from property, plant and
equipment (note 12)

Foreign exchange adjustments

Carrying amount at 31 March 2017

13. REWE @)
DRABESEHR(E)

(ZZB—RFH)-

2 I

—E-TFNA-HREME
DRAERENKRE (FHE)

R-ZBE—-XRE=ZA=+—-H80EK
—E-AENA-BEREE

ARERABNRE (EHIB)
e

ME BMERBEEA
(KtaF12)

HNEE FA R

R-ZZE—tF=ZA=+—H
SREE

RORE

4

&

ERNE-REF-_R2BAEBEAIR
BEIFENER TERXE=ZREAREH

MR REEY

Commercial Industrial
property properties
BEEF TXETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
61,343 363,960
(10,030) 3,510
(2,049) —
49,264 367,470
(3,931) 38,410
3,146 —_
48,479 405,880
BREEEERAR —ZT—tFR
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REWE @)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ARBEER(E)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the UTARENEREMNANBELRERE
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: ZHMAKBENOHRE:

Valuation

Significant

techniques unobservable inputs

EXTABEN

fhER % WA RS

Industrial properties
located in Hong
Kong:

MREBNITHEEF

Commercial properties

located in Taiwan:

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

Income approach

Income approach

Discounted cash
flow approach

BRRERER

Passing rent
(per sq.ft.
and per month)
REHEE
(B¥HERREA)
Market rent (per sq.ft.
and per month)
miEHEE
(BFAREREBA)
Term yield
HE &=
Market yield
™5 s =
Passing rent
(per sq.ft.
and per month)
REHEE
(BY¥FREREA)
Market rent
(per sq.ft.
and per month)
mizHEE
(B¥HERREA)
Term yield
HE W & =
Market yield
L=l ES
Estimated rental value
(per sq.ft. and
per month)
fEtiE2EE
(B¥HFRREA)
Rent growth (p.a.)
HEER(BF)

Long term vacancy rate

REZEEX
Discount rate
ARIR &=

HKS$5.3 to
HK$21.0

BHESITE
BE21.0T
HK$8.0 to
HK$23.0
BHEESOTE
B H523.0T
3.0% to0 4.0%

3.0% t0o 4.3%

HK$6.4 to
HK$15.4

BE6ATE
BH15.4 7T
HK$6.9 to
HK$10.8

BH6ITE
B¥10.8 T
29.0% to 32.0%

35.0% to 38.0%

HK$6.4 to
HK$15.4

BUECATE
BH1547T
1.1%

0.0% to 5.0%

3.2%

HK$5.3 to
HK$21.0

BES3ITE
BE21.07T
HK$7.1 to
HK$22.0
BEIATE
BUEE22.07T
3.0% to 4.8%

3.9% to 4.8%

HK$5.5 to
HK$18.3

BHESSTE
BE183 T
HK$6.5 to
HK$10.1

BHEG 5T E
BEE10.1 7T
30.0% to 34.0%

31.0% to 36.0%

HK$5.5 to
HK$18.3

BHSSTE
B#18.3 7T
1.6%

0.0% to 5.0%

3.3%



13.

Notes to the Financial Statements B ®R KisE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Income approach

Under the income approach, fair value is estimated on the basis
of capitalisation of existing rental income.

The passing rentals of the investment properties are assessed
and capitalised at term yield expected by investors for this type
of properties. The passing rents are assessed by reference to the
tenancy agreement of the investment properties. The term yield,
which is the capitalisation rate adopted, is made by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the leasing and sale
transactions of properties and adjusted to take account of the
valuers’ knowledge of the passing expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment
properties.

The key inputs were the passing rent and the term yield, which
a significant increase/decrease in the passing rent in isolation
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value
of the investment properties and a significant increase/decrease
in the term yield in isolation would result in a significant
decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment properties.

Market approach

Under the market approach, fair value is estimated by the direct
comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the
property interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales transactions as available
in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which included the location, size, shape,
view, floor level, year of completion and other factors
collectively, to arrive at the market price per square foot.

The key input was the market price per square foot, which a
significant increase/decrease in the market price would result in
a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
properties.

13.

31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Discounted cash flow approach

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal
value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on a property interest. A market-derived discount rate is
applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the
present value of the income stream associated with the asset.
The exit yield is normally separately determined and differs from
the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews,
lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or
refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic net
operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal value
anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental value and
the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would result
in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/decrease in the
long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
investment properties. Generally, a change in the assumption
made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long term
vacancy rate.
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31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. A LHEER
2017 2016
—E—+E —ET-RF
HK$’000 HK$000
BETFT BT
Carrying amount at beginning of year REPEREE 20,988 21,990
Recognised during the year (note 6) FRNRR (KF6) (552) (678)
Transfer to assets of a disposal group held for HEENEASFENHELAES
sale (note 25) 2= (K7 25) (6,599) —
Foreign exchange adjustments SMETDE (441) (324)
Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE 13,396 20,988
Current portion included in prepayments, B I EIERFESKE
deposits and other receivables ek EMEWERRRA (663) (674)
Non-current portion IE R B EB 1P 12,733 20,314
15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 15. B2 ITE
2017 2016
—E—+t& —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BETF T
At beginning of year RELD 51,610 34,159
Additions NE 9,511 21,308
Transfer to property, plant and EEYXE BERRE
equipment (note 12) (Btat12) (31,669) (2,110)
Foreign exchange adjustments SEFE (2,434) (1,747)
At end of year REXR 27,018 51,610
16. TRADEMARKS 16. BZ

2017 2016
—E—tF ZEB-RE

HK$°000 HK$°000
B FT BEFT

Cost and carrying amount MARKREE 33,293 33,293

BREEMERAT —T—LEH @
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. RBERAT2RE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Share of net assets EREESFE 75,243 84,251
Particulars of the associate are as follows: BEQNRZERMT :

Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of incorporation attributable
issued shares held and business to the Group Principal activity
BENERT AEEEM
R 65 &R MR S K & S it B EREHE TEEK
Megawell Industrial Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong/Mainland 50 Manufacture of
(“Megawell™”) China and Vietnam garments
BEHBERLR (EED ZER B8 PEARER 50 BKREE
o)
Megawell, which is considered a material associate of the BE BRALEEZETEHE LT B
Group, is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the AEERTREENEBBFLREREA
manufacture of garments and is accounted for using the equity BR o
method.
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31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17. RBEE LT Z2RE @)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREINFEEEVHERR 2T BEE R
information of Megawell adjusted for any differences in ECHEMEFZECLAZE WD EF
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in EHERRPVEREY R :

the consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016
—E—tHE

HK$000 HK$'000

BETFT B F T

Current assets MENEE 395,953 427,481
Non-current assets FREBEE 6,324 21,394
Current liabilities REEE (251,767) (274,862)
Net assets EEFH 150,510 174,013

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest BEAEENBERRZ
in the associate: Em ¥R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBZEERELH 50% 50%
Group's share of net assets AEBELEETE 75,255 87,007
Unrealised profit from sales to HETHELNRAEEN
an associate RERFH (12) (2,756)
Carrying amount of the investment ZRENKREE 75,243 84,251
Revenues 'ON 738,469 1,159,066
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ZHEW A (F18) B %8 (15,544) 72,176
Dividend received/receivable 2 ERRE — 50,000
& N ]
18. DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE 18. BRNHELRT
The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and BABEARRDEER BREREAR
repayable on agreed credit terms. 15 5T AR A RK

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

19. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

20.

Listed investments, at amortised cost

— Hong Kong — &%

— Elsewhere —HftithE
Non-current portion EREN I D
Current portion B EB 15

At 31 March 2017, the investments had an aggregate nominal
value of HK$484,182,000 (2016: HK$639,549,000), and bore
interest at rates ranging from 3.50% to 8.75% (2016: 1.88% to
13.13%) per annum. The amortised cost of the held-to-maturity
investments was computed as the amount initially recognised
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest rate method of any
difference between the initially recognised amount and the
maturity amount. At the end of the reporting period, the fair
values of the held-to-maturity investments were not materially
different from their carrying amounts.

None of the held-to-maturity investments were either past due
or impaired. The financial assets included in held-to-maturity
investments relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Quoted investment fund, at fair value

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

19. BEIIHPHRE

20.

ERENREES ARE

2017
—E—tF

2016
—E—REF
HK$000
BEF T

HK$000
BEFT

EHHRE  ROBHEAAR

390,840 488,483
94,694 154,098
485,534 642,581
(220,003) (514,111)
265,531 128,470

R-ZBE—+tHE=ZA=+—HB ZEREN
S HEE S B 484,182,000 T (=& — X
1 j81639,549,0007T) » F = 53.50%—
8.75% (=& — N F : 1.88%-13.13%) ° &
FHHNBRECCHER AN ENEZED
BREIANSERECEENEAS BN
AREFERAERFREHTNREIRSENR
FHA B EEBNRTHEBTE R
REMR BEANENRENAOAERAE
REEBETHEREE -

ZEEEHHMNREGERNRERE - B
REZIFPNRETNEMEEHYEE
FEENERRER -

THEERE

2017
—E—tF
HK$°000
BHET T

2016

HK$000
BETFT

54,250 —
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Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &E M=

31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

INVENTORIES

Raw materials B
Work in progress EER
Finished goods L
Consumables EAMR

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

& W BR R
A=

Trade receivables
Impairment

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

JE % B 2R 42

Non-current portion

B AR 42

Current portion

Except for trade receivables as detailed below, none of the
above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which

there was no recent history of default.

Payment terms for the Group’s customers mainly range from
“cash before delivery” to “90 days from the date of invoice”. A
significant portion of the customers trades with the Group
under documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to maintain
strict credit control on its outstanding receivables and has a
policy to manage its credit risk. Since the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade

receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

FEARE SR EMERIRR

FE
2017 2016
S S it
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
777,804 587,751
67,102 63,146
1,108,425 1,309,646
97,104 86,648
2,050,435 2,047,191
FEWARR - AARE TRk HEM
P& W B K
2017 2016
S S it
HK$°000 HK$°000
HEF T BT T
676,244 596,107
(10,856) (11,917)
665,388 584,190
483,543 767,281
(37,270) (42,468)
446,273 724,813
BEXHBOERERS BLREE

EEMAEE Rl P BENGB
EETIBR I 30 4 A 4D R B0 FE UAR

=)
e

AEBEFTERPAITREBEIZI#E
REIOXR] HhBEAREHRUE BN
HAKEETRZ AEEHERFRE
R-EREEESNENEEFERAR - H
RASEERERRBERSEP, At
BEANGFEETRER FAEELEMRA
BUERRESREEEMEARIEMET
ERZRE - BRERRBFEME -

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS 22, EWERR FEANRE -FT2RkHEM
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) FE Uk BR X (48)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the RESEHR REZEPRIOIKBRBE
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of 7B 810,856,000t ( = & — N F: B ¥
impairment of HK$10,856,000 (2016: HK$11,917,000), is as 11,917,000 7T ) & = F& U BR 5% BR &2 2 A7 40
follows: T

2017 2016
—E—tF

HK$000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Within 90 days 0HA 606,928 555,084
Over 90 days 90H M L 58,460 29,106
665,388 584,190

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables FWERFRERENEEHOT :

are as follows:

2017 2016

—E-t& —T-RF

HKS$000 HK$°000

BT T B F T

At beginning of year RED 11,917 9,763

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade FEUWRBRZURE, CR{ER @)

receivables (note 6) (Krite) (1,061) 2,154

At end of year REXR 10,856 11,917
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade ELABEWERRBERETEREENTE
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade R 1B JE Uk BR X4 45 8 15 10,856,000 T (= F
receivables of HK$10,856,000 (2016: HK$11,917,000) with a — N B %11,917,0000T) 0 5% L FE IR BR
carrying amount of HK$10,856,000 (2016: HK$11,917,000). The M ERE(E A B %10,856,000 T (= F — X
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that F 178 #11,917,0007T) 5% L@ B B R E
were in default or delinquency in payments. The Group does not BRERIRTIBITARREINEFR -
hold any collateral or credit enhancements over these balances. AEBVERZEHRBESETAEARS

HMRAERNRE -
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23.

Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &E M=

TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired
Within 90 days past due
Over 90 days past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers that have a good payment record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts: RHNEESHN
Assets BE
Liabilities =R

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to HK$21,497,000
(2016: HK$7,774,000) were credited to the statement of profit
or loss during the year.

22,

W IEEME S EERE
BHE0E
BIHA90 B LA £

23.

31 March 2017 =&~ t#=H=+—H
FEWERR BEARE sTekEM

FE UK B =X ()
WIR B E TR E 2 B WR T 2 BR il 2 AT A0
ik
2017 2016
—E—tfF
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BETF T
532,585 475,620
119,316 100,868
13,487 7,702
665,388 584,190

I 3k 180 5 5 4 T 0 B 2 B WURR IR e R HE
BEFP ZEREPULELRBITARBER -

B8 BEFAECERURER S EHE
FEBERFENRCHZEFAR 2B
AR ANAEZRLAREEERER
FEARER ZEEHNATE2HED
AUHEZFHRERE FAEELEHRZ
EERERERR AEERAY-

2016

—E2—+tF —E—XRF
HK$’000 HK$000
HBET T BETF T
14,315 34,050
12,231 4,525

AEBERTZEIFAEHPEHER
MEMIESHUEERHEERAR RF
W REERPMNENFEHEFIEST LR
ENRAARESESB21,497,000T (=F
— " 1 B¥7,774,000T) °

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, ReRASEEY

ReRBITHER
RITZA=BAREEZ
within three months when acquired EHER
RETZHB=ZBANU RS
over three months when acquired EHFR

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits with original maturity

Time deposits with original maturity of

At the end of the reporting period, the above balances include
cash and bank balances and time deposits denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) of HK$143,436,000 (2016: HK$244,525,000)
and HK$111,222,000 (2016: HK$318,089,000), respectively.

RMB in Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for periods less than
or equal to one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are placed with creditworthy banks.
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2017 2016
S S it
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
307,026 306,932
3,266,388 1,534,712
449,500 1,163,609
4,022,914 3,005,253

RB|EEWRR ULEHKEBEUARES
ErRERBTERARERERDB B
8 #5143,436,000T( =& — N F: B
244,525,0007T ) & 78 #111,222,000 ¢ (= &
— < 1 B#5318,089,0007T) °

ARBRIPEAREFEERLBREME
WOMRBHERENIMEESERIRE
E-EERNEEEBRE FAEEEES
PERBETIEXB2RTEARER
BRAOHEMER -

RITERREEARITERI RIS
EENE -EHERZERBLE-FRHU
T BIYFAEEAZHNBRESERME I
BEEEREHMERNERRIMAE - RITE
RREHREREFREERFNRIT -
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 25. PEAGENERBEE 28

SALE/ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AGENHELAZEE

AS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets classified as held for sale SEABENERBEE

During the year, the Group entered into sale and purchase RER SEHEIOBIE=LFTESE
agreements with independent third parties to dispose of certain WEHEBDEF - ZEFIES
buildings. Accordingly, such buildings were classified as non- HEMN 3!5 ABEE EZEER@DESY
current assets held for sale as their carrying amounts will be BBHERABNWE -ZEXZFR-_ZE—t
recovered principally through sale. The transactions have not F=A=+—HBERTER°

been completed as at 31 March 2017.

Certain disposal transactions were subsequently completed in ETHEXSHER=-_ZT—ttFHTNA
April and May 2017, resulting in estimated gains on disposals of REARER Bt HEE 451 mHBBE
approximately HK$21,400,000. 21,400,000 7T °

Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale PERFENHELAEZEE

During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase RERN SERE-BIE=ZFFTEE
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of HELHESOHBARN(THEAZ] - H
certain subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”). The Disposal Group It ZHEAESEAGENHEAEZESE
was classified as a disposal group held for sale as its carrying E AZHEEEREAESTEBEE KX
amount will be recovered principally through sale. The HE - ZBEBXER-_E—ttEFE=/A=1+
transaction has not been completed as at 31 March 2017. — B RTK

The major classes of assets of the Disposal Group classified as R-ZZB—+tHF=A=+—HB HEALAEW
held for sale as at 31 March 2017 are as follows: FEEEIERGEINMAT

HK$’000
BEFT
Property, plant and equipment WME- -BERRE 2,589
Prepaid land lease payments BN LHEER 6,599
Assets classified as held for sale DEEBFENEE 9,188
The disposal transaction was subsequently completed in April ZEHEXZHER_-_ZE—LtFMNAR
2017. B e

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. EFER™
2017 2016
—Z2—+t#F —E-RF
HK$000 HK$’000
BT BT
Trade payables TR 812,514 953,357
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBEEHR REEAHZ2ENSRAKRR
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: DHWMT

2017 2016
—E2—tF —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T B F T
Within 90 days 0HAR 778,532 927,524
Over 90 days 90H K £ 33,982 25,833
812,514 953,357
At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are non- RBEBRR BRAERABEMER KRB
interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms. 90K HYBRER ©
27. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND 27. HibENER EiFEEREK
DEPOSIT RECEIVED HE
2017 2016
—E—+E
HK$000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Other payables H b B BR R 231,451 219,988
Deferred income EIEUW A 4,155 8,316
Accrued liabilities i =Kt 238,385 297,625
Deposit received EE Gk — 152,400
473,991 678,329
Other payables and certain accruals are non-interest-bearing HttENERRRBHESTEBAIEWE
and have an average term of three months. BE¥HYERBA=MEA -
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31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 28. MIEHRITER

Effective

ELGUEL

interest rate

(%)
B ER R
(%)
Current B
Bank loans RITER
— unsecured — I 0.65-4.79
Non-current ERE
Bank loans RITER
— unsecured — I 1.45-1.63

Effective
annual

interest rate

Maturity  HK$°000 (%) Maturity HK$000
BREFER =R
BT T (%) ZHE EBEFT
Within 1 year or Within 1 year or
ondemand 2,436,599 0.65-3.92 on demand 529,707
R-—FAFRER —FRBRER
April 2018 to April 2018 to
March 2019 80,682 1.23-1.74 March 2019 313,258
—E2-NFWNAZE —E-NFWAEZE
—Z-hE=A —E-hF=A
2,517,281 842,965

2017 2016
—ZE—tF

HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BETT

Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: IRITEFGERE
Within one year or on demand R—FERAHIRER 2,436,599 529,707
In the second year E-FER 80,682 313,258
2,517,281 842,965

As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, all bank borrowings RZE—tFE=ZA=+—HBHRZE—RH&F
are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States dollars or ZER=+—H FMAERITEREARBE
Japanese Yen. AR -EZEngBe
As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, the Group’s banking R-ZB—tF=ZA=+—-BR=ZZ—AE
facilities were supported by corporate guarantees from the ZA=t+—-H FXEENRITEEDAHK
Company and certain of its subsidiaries. RARESFMHB AL EEER-

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX 29. EFEFE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEEE

Withholding tax on the
distributable profits of ~ Depreciation allowance in
the Group’s PRC excess of related
subsidiaries depreciation Others Total

IR EH R 2R BHERTEEAN

K 328 A Y 78 40 B | HERHE Hit A%
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
B +tE ZE—RE ZB—tE ZZ—RE ZB—t+tE ZE-—XRE ZB—-tFE —EB—RE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
BYEFT EBETT BT BEFTn BEFr EEFr BE¥Tn BT

At beginning of year READ 163,818 148,701 (721) (721) 3,208 2,725 166,305 150,705
Deferred tax charged/ F RRIEH KT M

(credited) to the B (nL£)#

statement of profit EERIE

or loss during the (Kt7F9)

year (note 9) (4,565) 15,117 — — 6,267 483 1,702 15,600
At end of year REXK 159,253 163,818 (721) (721) 9,475 3,208 168,007 166,305

Deferred tax asset BEEREBEEE

Loss available for offsetting
against future taxable profits

A AR S B & FE R B R

BB

2017 2016

—Z—+tF —E—RE

HK$’000 HK$’000

EBEF T B F T

At beginning of year RERD — —
Deferred tax credited to the statement of FARBRRPMENELERIE

profit or loss during the year (note 9) (K1EF9) 28,359 —

At end of year RER 28,359 —
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &Rk Kz

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$684,795,000 (2016: HK$717,098,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$353,789,000 (2016:
HK$363,613,000) and in Taiwan of HK$63,300,000 (2016:
HK$66,872,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which losses arose for a
maximum period of five years and ten years, respectively.
Deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses of HK$512,922,000
(2016: HK$717,098,000), HK$353,789,000 (2016: HK$363,613,000)
and HK$63,300,000 (2016: HK$66,872,000) arising in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Taiwan, respectively, have not been
recognised as they have arisen in subsidiaries for which no
assessable profits are expected to be generated in the
foreseeable future.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5%
and 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

29.
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IE B 18 (48)

AREBREBEEZHEER A B
#684,795000t( = & — <X F: B ¥
717,098,000t ) Z L ELEF BB AN
AANERPERZEEAFRERIEZ
ERBEN REERPEAERAEE
EX2HIEBEEE D B A% 353,789,000
(=2 — NE: B %363613,0007T) &
7 63,300,000t ( = F — X F: B
66,872,0007T)  ZEEAERBBIEN AT
AfERAZEEAFREEREEEERE
R+FANERT R BHRBEHZEMH
BARARARBERFIEELEERES A
REB FEAERAEEEZHEEE
2 B A8 #512,922,000t (=8 — N & :
7 %717,098,000 7T ) + # % 353,789,000 7T
(Z & — N F: % #363,613,0007T ) &
& #63,300,000c( =& — SR F: B ®
66,872,000 7T ) (9 IE % B 18 & = I MEITHRE

N
e

BEPELEMERE PEAXENIE
TEEARAISTREETRNOR SRR
10%EMRE - ZEZERB-FTENEF—A
—HBER AYEAR-ZZLHF+ZA
ST-RERELENFB - PFREEZTH
FEREEORE B HEERESRSD
BAEEBBHE BRARAEENB =X
AB5%R10% AU AEERZERN P E
RERINMBLARAE-ZZNFE -4 —
HENBAFDKNREBEHNRENS
£

ARBABMERRKEZRE  XEDTHE
AABRFAEBZBRR -
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

30. SHARE CAPITAL

31.

Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each in
nominal value 7B H£0.05 7T
Issued and fully paid: ERIRME:

1,381,696,104 shares of HK$0.05 each in

nominal value B #50.05 7T

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Group's contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then nominal value of the issued share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, as a result
of the reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the
Company’s shares in 1992.

The Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that
permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations which
occurred prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against
consolidated retained profits. The amount of goodwill
remaining in consolidated retained profits, arising from the
acquisition of an associate prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 in
2001, was HK$110,648,000 as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March
2016.

In accordance with the Macau Commercial Codes, Nice Dyeing
Factory (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, the principal operation of which is
conducted in Macau, is required to appropriate annually not less
than 25% of its profit after tax to a legal reserve, until the
balance of the reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s capital fund.
The reserve made has fulfilled the statutory requirement
accordingly.
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31.

iR A

2017
—E—tF

2016
—E—REF
HK$000
BEF T

HK$000
BEFT

2,000,000,000 % & iR E &

100,000 100,000

1,381,696,104 % & A% H &

69,085 69,085

f#
FEERAFERBEFENRBESER
Hbh 2@ 25 RGaRagBRA-

AEADBARBE-AA-FLTANE
HAEBE-ERBHRAQACBITR
AeEEERUBRNBELARRBBAER
ERITRAEEZERE-

AEECSIAEBMBHRELEEINAE
BEHRI AFRZZEZT-—FARENE
BANEENHERBERESREETM
H-R-ZEE-FRMNEAEBERE30
A ARB-BEARELENEE  f
HEBERGERBENT  HEBFER=-F -
tHF=ZA=F+-—HRZZE-X"EF=ZA=T
— H % 7%%110,648,000 7T °

RERPIEES . AA T — 2 EEA NS
AEKERBORFBEBERK) HE
AR HIBBERRMES BEEH
R 5L > A 25% H0 B B 1% 0 K B oK 2
B EHERRBBREEERATARLY
50% - ZBANHBEDEEGERERN
=R
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Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &E M=

31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 3. FEXRFEREZZWELF
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non- TEBFEERFERERZHMBELRN
controlling interests are set out below: HEHEIMT
Baleno Holdings Limited HeREBERAQAE

Percentage of equity interest held by FEREZEFEEZRAEZT I
non-controlling interests 36% 36%

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETF T BETF T
Profit for the year allocated to FEREZDIEERFERSFE
non-controlling interests 28,011 206,465

Consolidated accumulated balances RIBEBFERER 25
of non-controlling interests at 25tEE
the reporting dates 447,770 428,618

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

32. SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 32. EEARFEREZZHE QA @)
INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated TRIRMEREEERLATAREMNER
financial information of Baleno Holdings Limited and its AR EUBEERNRE - FfIRE cHEX
subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter- REHEMEBANE

company eliminations:

2017 2016
—E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Revenue A 4,051,133 4,596,781
Changes in fair value of investment WEYENARLBEEH
properties (3,931) (10,030)
Total expenses BB (3,969,392) (4,013,236)
Profit for the year KEEREF 77,810 573,515
Total comprehensive income for AEEZHIAHLE
the year 53,200 541,672
Current assets RBEE 1,642,117 2,268,933
Non-current assets kRBEE 311,059 316,280
Current liabilities mEEE (653,402) (1,331,662)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE (55,971) (62,946)
Net cash flows from operating KERMBRERAFEERE
activities 331,364 12,128
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & FHIREFR A GRt) B4
activities (77,520) 330,233
Net cash flows used in financing METHRERHEFE
activities (455,921) (128,550)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBESEEYW=EM (D)
cash equivalents FEE (202,077) 213,811

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



33.

Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &E M=

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
On 14 January 2016, Baleno Holdings Limited, a non wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and

purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of its entire equity interest in LSIIEHREIEIRAT at a
consideration of RMB250,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$296,625,000). The transaction was completed on 29 March
2016.

33.
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HE—KHE A A
RZEBE-—RF-—B+MB > AQAFZHk2
ERENMBARNNEREBER AT E—
BYR=ZF%TEEHZE URBEARY
250,000,000 7T (% {& 7 %5 296,625,000 7T )
ELBNEKRGERATMERER &%
TERZZE—RNFE=ZB=+TABREMK-

2016
HK$°000
B F T

Net assets disposal of: FTHECEEFHE:
Property, plant and equipment ME- - BERRE 24,166
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBRE2EEY 1,668
Trade receivables FE W BR X 5,726
Prepayments and other receivables TR A FRIE I H Ath B WBR R 880
Trade payables FEAF BR X 9)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HihEHRRRESEE (934)
31,497
Release of exchange fluctuation reserves EBR2IINESEHE (3,790)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MB AT WE 268,918
296,625

Satisfied by: EBHHAR:
Cash RE
Receivable FE UK BR X

2016
—E-RF

HK$000
BETFT

35,595
261,030

296,625

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

33. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDARY (continued) 33. HE—HELQF @
An analysis of the net cash and cash equivalents in respect of EBELE—-KHMEBEARZRERESEEY
the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: FBEZDNWT ¢

2016

—E—NEF

HK$°000

BT T

Cash consideration HERE 35,595

Cash and bank balances disposed of HECZREREBITHFER (1,668)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FREEE-HWBARZESRESZEEY

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary RAFEE 33,927
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 3. BAEE
(@) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities () MB|EHR UTHEEERNGE
not provided for in the financial statements were as WP PR
follows:

2017 2016
—E-tf =t BNAY
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T B F T
Bank guarantees given in lieu of REERAYERE ZRITER
property rental deposits 4,603 3,471
Guarantees for banking facilities ABMENRARTEEMEZ
granted to an associate ER 12,500 12,500
As at 31 March 2017, the banking facilities granted to an RZE—tFE=A=+—-H B=£L
associate with guarantees given to banks by the Group AT EBHALNERCDORTIEER
were not utilised (2016: nil). ZRTHEE(ZZE—RF HE) o
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD")
initiated a review on the prior years’ tax affairs of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

The protective tax assessments for the years of assessment
2005/2006, 2006/2007, 2007/2008, 2008/2009, 2009/2010
and 2010/2011 issued by the IRD in March 2012, March
2013, March 2014, March 2015, March 2016 and January
2017 are HK$69,125,000, HK$189,000,000, HK$388,878,000,
HK$376,200,000, HK$323,648,000 and HK$237,600,000,
respectively. The directors of these subsidiaries believe
that there are valid grounds to object to the tax claimed.
Subsequent to the objections filed, the IRD agreed to hold
over the tax claimed completely subject to the purchases
of tax reserve certificates. The Group purchased tax
reserve certificates of HK$4,500,000, HK$31,500,000,
HK$34,000,000 and HK$38,000,000 for years of assessment
2005/2006, 2006/2007, 2007/2008 and 2008/2009,
respectively, in previous years, and additional tax reserve
certificates of HK$38,000,000 and HK$50,000,000 for the
years of assessment 2009/2010 and 2010/2011, respectively
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

In view that the tax review for the years of assessment
2005/2006, 2006/2007, 2007/2008, 2008/2009, 2009/2010
and 2010/2011 is still in progress, the outcome of the case
is still uncertain. Up to the date of approval of these
financial statements, the directors of the Company
consider that adequate tax provisions have been made in
the financial statements.

31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

34. HBEEE @)

(b)

ERBBR (HE D) @45 B3040 K
BLAARHEBRATIFERB S HE
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—E-—BRHREFEBREREMERK
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7T B 376,200,000 T B ¥
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ToREMBARNEEHREEXZH
BEMREBTNFHRIRERE - B2
EREZ BREZEEMANE
BHR L EBERBF KK
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RZEEXR/ZEFEL - ZFF
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31 March 2017 = &—+#=HA=+—H

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) and
sublets certain properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from one to five years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the

then prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total

future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

Within one year R—FR

In the second to fifth years, inclusive HEZZFHEFR
(BREEEMF)

After five years REF®

As lessee

The Group leases certain land and buildings for factories,
retail outlets, a training centre and directors’ quarters
under operating lease arrangements. Such leases are

negotiated for terms of not more than 50 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases with its landlords falling due as follows:

Within one year R—FR

In the second to fifth years, inclusive $=-ZFRF R
(BRERME)

After five years REF#
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RERERH
@ fERHAA

FEBRBELEHELHHAET
REWE(HFREAINDY
¥ 2R -—F=21F - HAKK
—REETAFAMNRIRERA
RARBESTSEREHFELMA

RBEHR  ARERBEARTT L
ZRUHERERESN ZRARE
BEKESEBEIHBROT

2017 2016
e —F—RF
HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T
24,446 27,098
28,740 38,221
3,403 7,775
56,589 73,094
(b) 1ERFEBEA

AEERESEEERHAARG
tHRETRERE  BEMAT 8
YRLRESES  REMOBTA
MARBETF o

RB|EYR  AEERBEETI L
MAAHEECERESORREE
FEAEEABEIBERDT

2017 2016

S e
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT T
429,665 437,069
739,239 734,416
398,847 435,874
1,567,751 1,607,359
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31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 35. REFELTH @
(b)  As lessee (continued) (b) {ERFEMEAE)
The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets are MHRSEMT2L&EHNALTIR
based on the higher of a fixed rental and the contingent EEHESRREEBENRE 2K
rent based on the sales derived from the retail outlets ARGHERESEMTHEEREMET
pursuant to the terms and conditions as set out in the ZHEAREEMEPI 2R S EFEE - A
respective rental agreements. As the future sales of these RELZERGHLEESTEMTARR
retail outlets could not be estimated reliably, the relevant ZHEERE M ERASTABBERRE
contingent rent has not been included above and only the 2 mMARAFTFARKBESEIE -
minimum lease commitment has been included in the
above table.
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EARMAE
The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the REBNBERAREUTERM X HAIE :

end of the reporting period were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —EB-RE

HK$°000 HK$000
BETT BETFTT

In respect of property, plant and equipment, Y% HER R

contracted but not provided for BRI NERIERE 75,749 42,561
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEAEXTXRS
(@) During the year, the Group had the following related (@ RER FXEEZSETUTEEAL
party transactions: X5

2017 2016

—E2—+t5F —T-RE

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

Wizt BT T BT T

Sales to Megawell HEFEE (i) 154,932 403,376

Purchases from Megawell A EERE (ii) 223,566 332,487
Rental expenses paid to EEEARLNESER

related companies (iii) 22,176 24,326

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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31 March 2017 = &—tF=HA=+—H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@) (continued)
Notes:

(i) Sales to Megawell were made according to the prices and
conditions offered to major customers of the Group.

(ii) The directors considered that the purchases from Megawell
were made according to the prices and conditions similar to

those offered to other customers of Megawell.

(iii) Rental expenses were paid to related companies, of which
certain directors of the Company are also the directors and
beneficial shareholders, for the provision of directors’
quarters, retail outlets and a training centre for certain
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The
directors considered that the monthly rentals were charged
based on the prevailing market rates at the dates of
entering into the tenancy agreements. The rental expenses
of the directors’ quarters were included in the directors’

remuneration as detailed in note 7 to the financial

statements.

In addition, the Group has provided certain guarantees
for banking facilities granted to Megawell, as detailed in

note 34(a) to the financial statements.

(b) On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial
Building at Tianjin City, He Ping Qu, Bin Jiang Road 282-
286, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet for the
retail and distribution of apparel and accessories business
of the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1
April 2016 at the monthly rents of RMB1,208,000 and
RMB1,268,000 for the first year and the second year,
respectively. During the year, the Group paid to MRL
operating lease rentals in respect of the above property of

HK$16,162,000 (2016: HK$16,930,000).
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(0

(continued)

On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s Lookout,
Hong Kong from Latex as a director’'s quarters of the
Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2016 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000. During the year,
the Group paid to Latex operating lease rentals in respect
of the above property of HK$4,800,000 (2016:
HK$4,800,000).

On 1 April 2016, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited
("WLEL"), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun
Chak, an executive director and controlling shareholder of
the Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor,
Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong and a car parking space from
WLEL as a training centre of the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the monthly rent
of HK$63,200. During the year, the Group paid to WLEL
operating lease rentals in respect of the above properties
of HK$758,400 (2016: HK$758,400).

A non-controlling shareholder of Baleno Holdings Limited
had provided an unconditional guarantee to indemnify
the Group from any loss arising from the recoverability of
prepayments made to a supplier of the Group of
HK$4,696,000 (2016: HK$4,696,000) as included in the
balance of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period.

37.
(b)

(9]

31 March 2017 —&—+tF=H=+—H
BREALRS #®)

(&)

RZEBE-AR"FNA-B AE@EHE
VE(EB)BERARATZED (B
AAHTESERERBERBEWNES
E2ERB)BITEH AL EEME
EBERILAEBEREEANE
B-EZ=EEcA -H-ZT—<GMHN
B—HEAHmE SAHESABYE
400,0007C > RE R AEBH Lt
MEXINFILIBENELBERS S
7B #54,800,000T (=T —RF : B
4,800,000 7T) °

RZZE-—AR"EWNA—B  KRE@mMEK
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

ZHEERA
BERRER
T AE 5 T R v 0 1 E

Short term employee benefits

Post-employment benefits

Compensation for non-competition
undertaking

Total compensation paid to key

management person nel

The key management personnel of the Group refers to

the executive directors of the Company.

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in
note 7 to the financial statements.

Rental expenses under note 37(b) to the financial
statements paid to related companies also constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed under the
section of “Details of non-exempt continuing connected
transactions” in the Report of the Directors, the remaining
rental expenses paid to related companies constituted
continuing connected transactions exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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TEEBEASHMAE

BREALRS ®)

(d)

FEBTEEEASHM:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT BT
82,487 67,104

18 21

— 4,500

82,505 71,625

AEENETEEBAENERAAMN
HiTES-

ESHWEHBERANMB|MRMEET -

REMEBRRMEIIO)BEEEL T
TRMESERTER EHRAE
VAEHFHERZ BREEREESE
RERNTERENSEEER S
Bl HRTHBEEARNXMGFNES
ERBRIEETRAEUVAEREE
BBk AERBIRRIENS
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31 March 2017 =E—tF=H=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. ZEREIWEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHR SESRIAREEWNT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets SRMEE

Financial
assets at fair
value
through Available-
Held-to- profit or loss for-sale
maturity  — held for Loans and financial
investments trading  receivables assets
R @
EEHS#E
SFABEEN
BEIHNR LREE— EXRER THEES
& BEEE NIE RMEE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BETFT BETFT BETFT BETFT
Trade receivables FE U BR 7% — — 665,388 — 665,388
Bills receivable ERZEE — — 123,507 — 123,507
Financial assets included in  BERBEANFE -T2 R
prepayments, deposits Hih KRR Z 5
and other receivables =93 — — 270,404 — 270,404
Held-to-maturity investments 3% Z Z|Hi 1R & 485,534 — — - 485,534
Available-for-sale AHEERE
investments — — — 54,250 54,250
Long term rental deposits REe®RS — — 112,776 — 112,776
Derivative financial assets TELMEE — 14,315 — — 14,315
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBESEEY — — 4,022,914 — 4,022,914

Financial

assets at fair

value
through Available-
Held-to- profit or loss for-sale
maturity ~ — held for Loans and financial

investments trading receivables assets
A RER

SE3H emEE— BEREk A#HEES
HiRE BEEE FE R TR 18 RMEE &5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BETFT BEFT BT BT
Trade receivables FEUNBE TR — — 584,190 — 584,190
Bills receivable EREE — — 113,409 — 113,409

Financial assets included in BEREMNRE -TER
prepayments, deposits and Hith KRR Z 5

other receivables EE — — 506,912 — 506,912
Held-to-maturity investments S ZZHHIRE 642,581 — — — 642,581
Long term rental deposits REESRS — — 96,848 — 96,848
Derivative financial assets TTEERMEE — 34,050 — 34,050
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBReESEY — — 3,005,253 — 3,005,253

BREEMERAT —T—LEH @
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 38. #ZEE B /7 E£®MI @)
TREE

Financial liabilities

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss
— held for

Financial
liabilities at
trading amortised cost

AR

REBHRE AR
NEmas a5
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BETT BEFT

Trade payables FE AT BR X — 812,514 812,514
Bills payable B EE — 21,961 21,961
Due to an associate T E QT — 57,001 57,001
Financial liabilities included in BEREMEMSERR

other payables, accrued EiaBEREW

liabilities and deposit received Hicaaca= = — 233,658 233,658
Derivative financial liabilities TEEMmEns 12,231 — 12,231

Interest-bearing bank borrowings [ £ 88 17 & &k — 2,517,281 2,517,281

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through

profit or loss
— held for

trading

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Hemed— RBEMTAR

BIEEE Wemes &5t

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000

B F T B F T B F T

Trade payables FEATERRX — 953,357 953,357

Bills payable EAEE — 24,368 24,368

Due to an associate T E QR — 73,033 73,033
Financial liabilities included in BEREMEMSERNR

other payables, accrued iR ERE W

liabilities and deposit received JEAZERmERE — 223,339 223,339

Derivative financial liabilities fTEEmMAE 4,525 — 4,525

Interest-bearing bank borrowings [ff £ 3R 1T & & — 842,965 842,965
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Notes to the Financial Statements B iR &E M=

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 39.
INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

31 March 2017 —=&—t#=A=1+—H
EMIAZAAREER
AEESRIACEAERAABGRR

BEEAMAEGEHHEZEMIAR
SN EFIMT

Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AfRE

2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF —E2—tF Z—ZEZ-—RE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
B F T BT T B F T BT T

Financial assets EMEE
Derivative financial instruments TESRMITA 14,315 34,050 14,315 34,050
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 54,250 — 54,250 —
Held-to-maturity investments BREIBNKRE 485,534 642,581 461,154 648,554
554,099 676,631 529,719 682,604

Financial liabilities sRERE
Derivative financial instruments T4 €I E 12,231 4,525 12,231 4,525

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, bills receivable, held-to-maturity
investments, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, trade payables, bills payable, an amount
due to an associate, the current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings, and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accrued liabilities and a deposit received approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the financial
controller is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department directly reports to the
board. At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The

valuation is reviewed and approved by the board.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and

assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

EEEBECTRASRRASSEY BUWER
FOREERE FEIHNRKRE BERE
NHRE-FJERAMERERERARNZERE
B EARYR BARE BABEQIIR
H-MERTERRBHBOREENEM
EHER BAEEREKRTEAZEH
EERAAEEAREEAE TEHR
LETENEHFHRE-

REBzUBHUBERAEEERESHT
BERAREMECHERRE B BEE
MEESER -NE-—HEH BBHD
MEMTEEBELZD WREMLERFER
ZEEHANE-HEHE=ZSESHE

TRHEERBEBEZAREUZIARBRE
REF(MFBEHLERFEE)ENISZT
ZARGERAR EFHEIAERS
RATH A EREE

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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39.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the long term rental deposits and interest-
bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank borrowings as at 31 March 2017 was assessed to
be insignificant.

The fair values of available-for-sale investments are estimated
based on quoted prices provided by the investment fund
manager.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions.
Derivative financial instruments, including forward currency
contracts, are measured using valuation techniques similar to
forward pricing, using present value calculations. The models
incorporate various market observable inputs including the
credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of
forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values.
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39. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 39. ERMITAZAARBEER @
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIBAEENERIENAABETE
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: S48
Assets measured at fair value: RAAREFENEE:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2017
R-B—tE=FA=+—HHWAAEFNE
Quoted

prices in  Significant Significant

active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BEX
RERTE EAXATBRE FTABERN
WRE HEARE A B
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—%) (B=4%) (B=4)
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B F T B F T BT B F T

Derivative financial assets TTESREE — 14,315 — 14,315
Available-for-sale investments AHHEERE 54,250 — — 54,250
54,250 14,315 — 68,565

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2016

R-ZE-—R"FE=ZA=+-—BHWAAREFE
Quoted
prices in  Significant Significant

active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

EX

RER™SE EAAHE TAHEHN
WRE MNiEARE A B
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(558 —4) (B=#) (B=#)
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
BT BT T BT T BT

Derivative financial assets FTESREE — 34,050 — 34,050

BREEMERAT —T—LEH @
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39. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 39, eI A AEBES &K@
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value: BARBEFENERE:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2017
R-E—tF=A=Zt+—HWARETE
Quoted
prices in  Significant Significant

active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
X
REBME EXTHEE FTBEN
WHRE HNEaAHRE LN &
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—#) (B=%) (B=#&)
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T B F T

Derivative financial liabilities TESMERE — 12,231 — 12,231

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2016

R-ZE-—AR"F=A=+—HWAREF=
Quoted
prices in  Significant Significant

active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

EX

RERTE EATBR FUBEN
MERE WBANE  BANE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(E—#) (B=#) (B=4)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T
Derivative financial liabilities TESRER — 4,525 — 4,525
As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, the Group had no RZ-ZE—tH=A=Z+—-HERZZ-—XRE=ZA=
financial instruments measured at fair value under Level 3. +—B AEETYERAABNEEF=HzcH
T o

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value R 2RIEERSAMEEYETAARENE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers S —REF_HBMER  TELE=REA
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial WEH(ZZF—RXF :|)-

liabilities (2016: nil).
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39. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 39, eI AR AEBES &K@
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EHREAARABENEE:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2017
R-E—tF=A=Zt+—HWARETE
Quoted
prices in  Significant Significant

active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
X
REBME EXTHEE FTBEN
WHRE HNEaAHRE LN &
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—#) (B=%) (B=#&)
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T B F T

Held-to-maturity investments BRIHNKRE 461,154 — — 461,154

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2016

R-ZE-—AR"F=A=+—HWAREF=
Quoted
prices in  Significant Significant

active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

EX

RER™SE EAAHE TAHEHN
MIE HEARE A B
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(BB—#) (B=%) (B=#)
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT B F T BT T BT

Held-to-maturity investments BEEHNKRE 642,581 — — 642,581

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. BIXEREEEERKE

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than AEBEZEESHIAMRITEIAMNE
derivatives, comprise bank loans, cash and cash equivalents. The FERTER BekBEZEY-ZE2
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance MITAZIFEZEENRALAEEERELEE
for the Group's operations. The Group has various other B2 AEEFHMTEANEZRMEERE
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, bills & WEWRRMN BREE - BHERRE
receivable, trade payables and bills payable, which arise directly REE DEEREHEE-

from its operations.

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage
currency risks arising from the Group’s operations and its sources

of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note
2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage this
mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest
rate fluctuations.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax and equity (through
the impact on floating rate borrowings).

2017 —E—tF
Hong Kong dollar et
Hong Kong dollar et
2016 ZE-RF
Hong Kong dollar pegis
Hong Kong dollar ek

40.

Increase/(decrease) in

HEEMEERERBE @)

AEEFSHETETIAERS  TEEEER
HHAEEH EEEBAEEEERME
FEEzE¥WRARE-

FEEERIAMELEZETERRABA
ZEB-NEERR FERBRRRBMEEA
B BEEERHMYBRARRUEELER
B ZERRBRNT - AEBEBTE
TEZEHBERBREBRERMT24-

R = @
AEBEETSANESPABTEERLE
Bz ZERITEREHE-

FEBNHERIAASENEERFEE
RESUEEREHRE AR - BUAREN
BEEZES AEEUZENRIERS
MEURE HEE R R B 2 Ak -

TERBRTHEBEMEHMBEENER
T AEENBRRAENRESHSER
HHEANZEEH (BHZEERNZE)DN

Increase/(decrease)

in profit before tax

interest rate and equity
FR B Al 0% Al & 5 =

2, (D)

HK$°000

BETF T
1 (22,120)

(1) 22,120
1 (13,748)

(1 13,748
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 28%
(2016: 29%) of the Group's sales are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the operating units
making the sale, whilst nearly 26% (2016: 26%) of costs are
denominated in currencies other than the units’ functional

currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group’s equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2017 —E—+tF

40.

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB

2016
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB

i B HARBERE
i B EAREIE

—BR-REF
i B HLARERE

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {78 # & A R ¥ 7+ {&

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not

significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, and derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not
significant as the counterparties of these other financial assets

are mainly well-recognised corporations.

31 March 2017 —&—+tF=H=+—H
HEEMEEEERBE @)

HhEE LR

AEERFRERSGERRAR ZARRBL
BEMUZEMNIIGEEB U EBET
SHESIRE NEMMPY28% (ZF—NEFE:
29%) Z 88 & T LLAS & B {v Ih BE & HE A Sb
REEBEE BRN26%(ZZT—KF:
26%) Z AR AN Th BLAS & BE {1 Ih BE & HE LA S
ZEMEE o

TERRRTRBEMAR EEEME M
ZENBERT  AEBOBRBAENRA
EENESHSERTENARBERS
BHNEBUHEENEBIAENES)
Y BURAE o

Increase/(decrease)
Increase/(decrease)

in profit before

in exchange rate tax and equity

B i B0 A % #E &

RN, CGRD) i CR2)
% HK$’000

BT T

1 22

(1 (22)

1 1,102

(1) (1,102)

FERRE

FEBEARBEREERFZEZER
BoAREBEZBEAREZERARTFERZ
EFRALBERFE  RETEEZFES
B o L oh - AN SR B35 4R 3t B B B IR
S BUWASENES XN IRREAR -

rEBEtCEREE(BEERERREE
BEYRTEEMIB)ZEERBRFEAR
ZHFENMELE ESRBREERZE
TECREE HRUEMEREERS
HFTELHBRILOACERFIHE
HESERRZEARELFEKX -

BAEEBERAT —E-LFR
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables is disclosed in note 22

to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts and bank loans. As at 31 March 2017, 3% (2016: 38%)
and 97% (2016: 62%) of the Group's total borrowings would

mature after one year and in less than one year, respectively.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

40.

HEEMEERERBE @)

EERE(E)
HRAEEEERRIACGERFZE=E
R HABEREHERS -

HitBRAASEHHARUERRELENE
BREBRZEBLCENCKRERYBHRRMET
22 °

TR b
AEEEEERANARTEIRRBRITERU
FERAESHNEEMERBETMEMES TS -
RZE-—+tE=A=+—-H AEEHLE
3% (ZF —RF :138%) RI7% (==&
—RF62%)DRIER —FER—FRE
By o

FEERBEBRNEREE  HEEAK
BERAXINNWIRERAENT :

2017
—E—+tF
Less than 3 to less than
Ondemand 3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
={EA =
RER SR +T=@AR —ZRF =
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT E¥FrT BT T BT T BT
Interest-bearing M RIRITE R
bank borrowings — 2,358,623 80,828 82,849 2,522,300
Trade payables R — 778,532 33,982 — 812,514
Bills payable EBAEE — 21,961 — — 21,961
Financial liabilities &% A H 1tb fE 15
included in other BRFX - BT EER
payables, [EAL AN
accrued liabilities £ ®&&
and deposit
received 132,686 100,972 — — 233,658
Due to an associate fE{} Bt A 7 57,001 — — — 57,001
Derivative financial 74 £ m & &
liabilities 23 3,566 5,742 2,900 12,231
189,710 3,263,654 120,552 85,749 3,659,665
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. IR EMEREBERBUR @)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) B R B ()

2016
—-AE

Less than 3 to less than

On demand 3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total

=@ A =z
RER A +T=@AR = 28 55 &2 &%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT T BFror BEFr

Interest-bearing M ERITER

bank borrowings — 311,834 218,281 322,518 852,633
Trade payables FEATERFX — 927,524 25,833 — 953,357
Bills payable EBAEE — 24,368 — — 24,368

Financial liabilities ‘&% R E b f&
included in other BRF - B:tEER

payables, ERFTERZ
accrued liabilities £ FE&&
and deposit
received 149,679 73,660 — — 223,339
Due to an associate F&{JE& A 7] 73,033 — — — 73,033
Derivative financial $T4£ &A1&
liabilities 20 748 2,254 1,503 4,525
222,732 1,338,134 246,368 324,021 2,131,255
Capital management ERER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be AEBEAERRARRAEBREEE
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return WEERD IRBBRENEHEESR
to the ordinary equity holders through the optimisation of the HE UFEERERMEESIZEKRER -
debt and equity balance.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments AEEEBERAEBURBREREE RN
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or EHSFEHRAEZE - AEETUBEBBRAELHR
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend REENRE HORRBEBERSZITH
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue BUARFIABELRLEB RBE-Z—
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or tEF=ZA=+-HBEZE-RE=ZA=T
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March —ALFER EXEENEE BER
2017 and 31 March 2016. BrRitmEgs.

BREEMERAT —T—LEH @
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)
The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity. The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio

at an appropriate level.

40. X EREEBEER XK@

BEXREE(E)
FEBEREFAEBRERERER EX
EELEEZENRRERASEENENS
MEBEBRUARRTHE AEBIEE
EREFESEBLEEREGEKTF -

2017 2016

—E2—+F —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

Total interest-bearing debts A EER 2,517,281 842,965
Less: Cash and cash equivalents MKk - EBEeRESZEEY (4,022,914) (3,005,253)
(1,505,633) (2,162,288)

Total equity R 5,897,403 6,560,629
Gearing ratio (times) EXRBELE(FE) -0.3 -0.3

41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(i) In April and May 2017, the disposal of certain items of
property, plant and equipment set out in note 25 to the
financial statements were completed with an estimated
gain on disposal of approximately HK$21,400,000.

(i) In April 2017, the disposal of Disposal Group set out in
note 25 to the financial statements was completed. The
directors of the Company are assessing the financial effect
of the disposal to the Group.
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. DR BARRFR
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

RARRBERRZHBRRREHNT

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2017 2016
—=E—t5F —E—RE
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RMBARZRE 3,743,319 4,127,454
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and deposits ENRENES 201 201
Dividends receivable FEU R B — 500,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEEY 2,780 248
Total current assets HWRBEE 2,981 500,449
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accrued liabilities HENBRARETER 2,681 551
NET CURRENT ASSETS FEBEEFRE 300 499,898
Net assets EEFE 3,743,619 4,627,352
EQUITY E
Issued capital 2BTRAR 69,085 69,085
Reserves (note) 1 (M at) 3,232,391 4,088,490
Proposed final and special dividends R R HA R 45 Bl iR 2 442,143 469,777
Total equity BRER 3,743,619 4,627,352
BAEEBERAT —T—LEH @
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. D AR R K @)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: M -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KN AFEEHEMT -

Share Capital
premium redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits Total

BEx  RAEE

i {8 iR #E EAR% REEA BmE
Note  HK$7000  HK$:000  HK$:000 HK$000 HK$'000
Wiz EMTrT BEFT EETT BETT B¥TT

At 1 April 2015 R-ZE-RFMA—H 703,365 1,695 48,708 3,690,956 4,444,724

Total comprehensive income for A EEZE U A L%

the year — — — 500,418 500,418
2015/2016 interim dividend —E-R/EBE-~EERHRE 10 — — — (386,875) (386,875)
2015/2016 proposed finaland —Z—f /ZZE—ANEEHRAS

special dividends SEEF =S 10 — — — (469,777) (469,777)
At 31 March 2016 and RZFE-AE=A=+-BR

1 April 2016 RZE-AR"EMA—H 703,365 1,695 48,708 3,334,722 4,088,490

Total comprehensive income for REE 2 HEUABEE

the year — — — 553 553
2016/2017 interim dividend SE-X/CE-—LEEGERE 10 - — — (414,509) (414,509)
2016/2017 proposed final —E-X/CE—LEERRAY

dividend B’RE 10 —_ —_ —  (442,143) (442,143)
At 31 March 2017 R=ZZ—+tF

B=+-—H 703,365 1,695 48,708 2,478,623 3,232,391
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the difference HEARATBRDE—NDA-FLEHRAMNE
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the H O RRARZEHBBRAERIRERTR
Company and the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries ArHEBEREFEBENBARARKERZS
acquired on the date of acquisition, as a result of the HEEFE2ZE REBRFE-— LN\ —
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the FRARERER)  ARETHERTIRE
Company’s shares in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of e

Bermuda (as amended), a distribution may be made out of the
contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43. MB/mRZ2BLE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue AMBEREER=—_F—tEFERA+HH
by the board of directors on 16 June 2017. ETERAERBETE-
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